Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Contact: Elaine Huckell
Scrutiny Officer
Thursday, 10 November 2016 at 7.30 pm Direct: 020-8379-3530
Venue: Conference Room 1, Dugdale Centre, Tel: 020-8379-1000
Thomas Hardy House, 39 London Road, Ext: 3530
Enfield, Middlesex, EN2 6DS E-mail: elaine.huckell@enfield.gov.uk

Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

PLEASE NOTE VENUE ABOVE

Councillors : Derek Levy (Chair), Abdul Abdullahi, Katherine Chibah, Joanne Laban,
Edward Smith and Nneka Keazor

Education Statutory Co-optees: 1 vacancy (Church of England diocese
representative), Simon Goulden (other faiths/denominations representative), Tony
Murphy (Catholic diocese representative), Alicia Meniru & 1 vacancy (Parent
Governor Representative).

Enfield Youth Parliament Co-optees (2)

Support Officer — Andy Ellis ( Lead Scrutiny Officer)
Elaine Huckell (Scrutiny Officer)

AGENDA - PART 1
1. WELCOME & APOLOGIES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary,
other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to items on the agenda.

3. CALL IN OF REPORT: GREEN BIN SERVICE CHANGE ( 7:35 PM TO
8:05PM) (Pages 1 - 58)

To receive a report from the Director of Finance, Resources & Customer
Services outlining a Call-In received for consideration by Overview & Scrutiny
on the following reason: (Report No: 104)

Decision by Cabinet (19 October 2016): Green Bin Service Change.

Cabinet Decision included on Publication of Decision List No: 34/16-17 Key
Decision KD4376 (List Ref: 10/34/16-17) issued on Friday 21 October 2016.



It is proposed that consideration of the Call-In be structured as follows:

e Brief outline of reasons for the Call-In by representative(s) of the
Members who have called in the decision.

e Response to the reasons provided for the Call-In by the Cabinet
Members responsible for taking the decision.

e Debate by Overview & Scrutiny Committee and agreement on action
to be taken.

CALL IN OF REPORT: THE DEVELOPMENT OF EDMONTON CEMETERY
(8:05PM TO 8:35PM) (Pages 59 - 104)

To receive a report from the Director of Finance, Resources & Customer
Services outlining a Call-In received for consideration by Overview & Scrutiny
on the following reason: (Report No 102).

Decision by Cabinet (19 October 2016) in respect of The Development
of Edmonton Cemetery.

Cabinet Decision included on Publication of Decision List No: 34/16-17 Key
Decision KD4234 (List Ref: 8/34/16-17) issued on Friday 21 October 2016.

It is proposed that consideration of the Call-In be structured as follows:

e Brief outline of reasons for the Call-In by representative(s) of the
Members who have called in the decision.

e Response to the reasons provided for the Call-In by the Cabinet
Members responsible for taking the decision.

e Debate by Overview & Scrutiny Committee and agreement on action
to be taken.

CALL IN OF REPORT: REFURBISHMENT & REPROVISION WORK OF
ENFIELD HIGHWAY LIBRARY BUILDING ( 8:35PM TO 9:05PM) (Pages
105 - 134)

To receive a report from the Director of Finance, Resources & Customer
Services outlining a Call-In received for consideration by Overview & Scrutiny
on the following reason: (Report N0:110 )

Decision by Cabinet (19 October 2016): Refurbishment & Reprovision
Work of Enfield Highway Library Building

Cabinet Decision included on Publication of Decision List No: 34/16-17 Key
Decision KD4335 (List Ref:12/34/16-17) issued on Friday 21 October 2016.

It is proposed that consideration of the Call-In be structured as follows:
e Brief outline of reasons for the Call-In by representative(s) of the

Members who have called in the decision.
e Response to the reasons provided for the Call-In by the Cabinet



Members responsible for taking the decision.
e Debate by Overview & Scrutiny Committee and agreement on action
to be taken.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS ALSO A PART 2 REPORT RELATING TO
THIS ITEM.

CALL IN OF REPORT: QUARTERLY CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
REPORT ( WITHDRAWN) (Pages 135 - 156)

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS AGENDA ITEM HAS NOW BEEN
WITHDRAWN

To receive a report from the Director of Finance, Resources & Customer
Services outlining a Call-In received for consideration by Overview & Scrutiny
on the following reason: (Report No:97 )

Decision by Cabinet (19 October 2016): Quarterly Corporate
Performance Report

Cabinet Decision included on Publication of Decision List No: 34/16-17 Key
Decision KD4330 (List Ref:3/34/16-17) issued on Friday 21 October 2016.

It is proposed that consideration of the Call-In be structured as follows:

e Brief outline of reasons for the Call-In by representative(s) of the
Members who have called in the decision.

e Response to the reasons provided for the Call-In by the Cabinet
Members responsible for taking the decision.

e Debate by Overview & Scrutiny Committee and agreement on action
to be taken.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 OCTOBER 2016. (Pages 157 -
160)

To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2016.
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
To note the dates of future meetings as follows:

The date of the next business meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee
is to be confirmed

Provisional Call-Ins
Tuesday 22 November 2016
Tuesday 13 December 2016
Tuesday 17 January 2017

Business meetings of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be held on -



Thursday 19 January 2017
Thursday 23 February 2017

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC

To consider, if necessary, passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for the item of business listed in Part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that it
will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006), as are listed on
the agenda (Please note there is not a Part 2 agenda).

PART 2 AGENDA



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORT NO. 143

- . Item: 4
MEETING TITLE AND DATE: Agenda - Part: 1
Overview & Scrutiny Subject: Green Bin Service Change
Committee, Wards: All

10 November 2016

REPORT OF:

Director of Finance, Resources
and Customer Services

Contact officers and telephone

Key Decision No: 4376

Cabinet Member consulted: N/A

numbers:

Asmat Hussain, Assistant Director Legal and Governance
Tel: 020 8379 6438

Email: asmat.hussain@enfield.gov.uk

Claire Johnson, Scrutiny and Member Services Manager
Tel: 020 8379 4239

E mail: claire.johnson@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1  This report details a call-in submitted in relation to the following decision:
Cabinet Decision (19 October 2016): Green Bin Service Change

1.2 Details of this decision were included on Publication of Decision List No.
34/16-17 (Ref. 10/34/16-17 — issued on 21 October 2016).

1.3 In accordance with the Council’'s Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is asked to consider the decision that has been called-in for
review.

1.4  The members who have called-in this decision do not believe it falls outside of
the Council’s Policy Framework.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  That Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the called-in decision and




Page 2

either:

(@)

(b)
(©)

Refers the decision back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration setting out in writing the nature of its concerns. The
decision making body then has 14 working days in which to reconsider
the decision; or

Refer the matter to full Council; or
Confirm the original decision.

Once the Committee has considered the called-in decision and makes one of
the recommendations listed at (a), (b) or (c) above, the call-in process is
completed. A decision cannot be called in more than once.

If a decision is referred back to the decision making person or body; the
implementation of that decision shall be suspended until such time as the
decision making person or body reconsiders and either amends or confirms
the decision, but the outcome on the decision should be reached within 14
working days of the reference back. The Committee will subsequently be
informed of the outcome of any such decision.

3.1

BACKGROUND/ INTRODUCTION

Please refer to Section 3 of the Cabinet decision report.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None — Under the terms of the call-in procedure within the Council’s
Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny Committee is required to consider
any eligible decision called-in for review. The alternative options
available to Overview & Scrutiny Committee under the Council's
Constitution, when considering any call-in, have been detailed in
section 2 above.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
To comply with the call-in procedure within the Council’'s Constitution.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1 Financial Implications

The financial implications relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision report.



10.

11.

Page 3

6.2 Legal Implications

S 21, S 21A-21C Local Government Act 2000, s.19 Police and Justice
Act 2006 and regulations made under s.21E Local Government Act
2000 define the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny
committee. The functions of the committee include the ability to
consider, under the call-in process, decisions of Cabinet, Cabinet
Sub-Committees, individual Cabinet Members or of officers under
delegated authority.

Part 4, Section 18 of the Council’'s Constitution sets out the procedure
for call-in. Overview and Scrutiny Committee, having considered the
decision may: refer it back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration; refer to full Council or confirm the original decision.

The Constitution also sets out at section 18.2, decisions that are
exceptions to the call-in process.

6.3 Property Implications

There are no corporate property implications arising from the Cabinet
decision Report.

KEY RISKS

The key risks identified relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

The way in which the called-in decision impacts on the Council
priorities relating to fairness for all, growth and sustainability and strong
communities have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

The equalities impact implications relating to the called-in decision
have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

The performance management implications identified relating to the
called-in decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The health and safety implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.



Page 4

12. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

The public health implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

Background Papers
None



Page 5

APPENDIX 1

Call-In: Cabinet Decision: Green Bin Service
Change



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7

Page 271 Agenda Item 15

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORT No. 104

Agenda - Part: 1 ltem: 15

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

Cabinet, 19™ October Subject: Green Bin Service Change
2016
Wards: All
REPORT OF: Key Decision No: KD 4376
Director — Regeneration &
Environment Cabinet Member consulted:

Councillor D Anderson

Contact officer and telephone number:
Jonathan Stephenson, Head of Commercial and Client Services, Public

Realm. Email: jonathan.stephenson@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 Enfield Council has a challenging savings target of £56m by 2019/20.

1.2 In preparation to find further savings the Green Bin collection service has been
considered in terms of alternative service provision, as it is a non-statutory
service, unlike refuse and recycling.

1.3 Options around the different variations of the Green Bin collection service,
currently a free weekly collection service, have been explored in terms of
savings potential, impact on recycling performance and potential impact on
resident satisfaction.

1.4 Two options have been taken forward to public consultation:
o Free fortnightly combined Green Bin and food collection service
e Weekly charged (£60 per year) Green Bin collection service with a
separate free food collection service for all kerbside properties.

1.5 The consultation responses showed a clear preference for Free Fortnightly
combined Green Bin and food collection service. For the reasons set out in
this report officers also consider that the Free Fortnightly combined Green Bin
and food collection service should be adopted.

1.6 A process and indicative timescale for implementation of free fortnightly green
bin collections is outlined

RE 16.062



Page 8
Page 272

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Cabinet approve the implementation of the recommended option, Free

Fortnightly collection, whilst retaining weekly collections of refuse and

recycling, as detailed in sections 3.27 — 3.31.

2.2 That Cabinet approves to delegate to the Assistant Director Public Realm (in

consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member) the decision to procure,
negotiate and award contracts (in accordance with the Council’'s Procurement
Rules) for the works and services as appropriate associated with the

implementation of a Free Fortnightly collection service.

2.3 That Cabinet approve the redirection of capital expenditure, funded through

existing borrowing of up to £377k required to implement the service change.

3.

3.1;

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

BACKGROUND

Enfield Council has a challenging savings target of £566m by 2019/20. It
is therefore imperative that the Council explores different ways of
delivering services that are more efficient, but that also retain high
standards of service for residents.

The savings relating to Regeneration and Environment are £3.2m over
the same period.

Though balanced for 2016/17, there is a budget gap remaining in the
Medium Term Financial Plan of £13.7m up until 2019/20. The
proposals set out in this report would mean that the part year effect of
the saving can contribute towards the Council’s financial position in
2017/18 should this be agreed.

From 2011/12 to 2015/16, Public Realm has delivered savings of
£4.25m and secured £2.4m DCLG funding to retain weekly waste
collections and is committed to doing so, which has maintained the
high standard of frontline services to residents in Public Realm.

RE 16.062




3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

Page 9
Page 273

Savings have been delivered through contract negotiations, income
generation, staff optimisation and automation of services.

Further, during 2014/15 the parks, streets and waste services all
underwent efficiency reviews to measure: cost, performance and public
sector satisfaction. In summary the outcomes were:

e Street cleansing: Service offers excelient value for money (£13.0
per person compared to London average of £21.40 per person),
with good performance and high customer satisfaction.

¢ Parks and Open Spaces: High productivity with higher satisfaction
than the private sector comparators and lower unit costs.

¢ Waste and recycling: High service levels and performance
compared to other London authorities. The recommendations
included removal of one round and route optimisation of all three
services. These recommendations have been delivered and there
are no further opportunities for resource reductions without

significant service change.

The review included benchmarking with private sector comparators

and concluded that all services are effectively fully optimised.

In 2015 a range of savings were considered to meet the budget gaps
predicted in 2016/17 and 2017/18. The savings that were agreed by
Council were for frontline service provision in streets and parks from
2016/17. To assist the Council in meeting further future savings officers
were asked to review further opportunities within the waste service
area, specifically around. recycling and the green bin service.

In order to gain further future savings modelling has been undertaken
to reduce the recycling and green bin services.

Reducing or limiting kerbside comingled recycling services would
significantly increase disposal costs and reduce customer satisfaction
and recycling performance. Therefore this has not been taken forward
and the Council is committed to retaining this service weekly.

The Green Bin collection service has therefore been considered
because it is a non-statutory service and reductions here are

RE 16.062



3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

Page 10
Page 274

considered to have the least impact on customers and service
performance.

Benchmarking - Green Bin Service offers

With the national, regional and local growth in the provision of kerbside
recycling and green waste collection systems and the associated costs
of these services, there has been a move in other areas over the last
decade to alternate weekly, chargeable or fortnightly services.

Given the drive to increase recycling and reduce waste coupled with
financial pressures, councils such as Salford City Council have
introduced three weekly residual waste collections (black bins) and Fife
Council has trialled monthly residual collections.

Analysis shows that nationally there is a wide range of collection types
and frequencies which are continually changing. In England, of the 301
authorities that provide green bin services the breakdown of types is as
follows:

Table 1 (Source — Waste Resources Action Programme 15/16)

Green Bin Service % of English Authorities
Free Weekly 18%
Charged Weekly 24%
Free Fortnightly 32%
Charged Fortnightly 26%

RE 16.062



3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

Page 11
Page 275

London boroughs provide a variety of green bin configurations as set
out in the table below.

Table 2 - Summary of Green Bin Collection Services (Delivered by
London Boroughs; Source — Resource London September 2016)

Green Bin Service Number of London Boroughs

Free Weekly 11 (including Enfield)
Charged Weekly 2
Free Fortnightly 4
Charged Fortnightly 12
No service 3
Total 32

Green Bin Options Appraisal

A full options appraisal was undertaken, with specialist technical
support, to identify appropriate service provision options that could;
provide savings, maintain or improve performance levels, was in line
with accepted service provision elsewhere and minimised impact on
customer satisfaction with waste and recycling services overall.

The service variables considered within the options appraisal included;
collection frequency, seasonal frequency, collection methodology,
charging and not operating a garden and food collection service.

The possible service configurations generated using these variables
were then reduced down to 10 potentials by removing options that
increased costs, did not meet statutory requirements, were a significant
service reduction or were nonsensical.

The 10 options were then modelled to assess; likelihood of providing
significant savings, impact on recycling performance and the impact on
resident satisfaction. The two options that performed the most
favourably against the criteria were:

e Free fortnightly combined Green Bin and food collection service
o Weekly charged (£60 per year) Green Bin collection service with a
separate free food collection service for all kerbside properties.

RE 16.062



Page 12
Page 276

3.18. Appendix 1 contains full details of the options appraisal process.

Public Consultation

3.19. To measure attitudes towards the two service options, and understand
the potential impact of each, an online questionnaire, and a hard copy
version, was made available to residents across the borough. The
questionnaire was available for 12 weeks, between 10™ June and 2"
September 2016.

"~ 3.20. Residents were also offered the opportunity to contact the Consultation
and Resident Engagement Services Team if they required assistance
in participating in the consultation or required further information.
Background information was provided with the questionnaire explaining
why the Council wished to change the way in which it provided the
Green Bin service, and setting out details of the two options which the
Council had identified as preferred options. The questionnaire could be
translated online, was clear and concise and wide ranging promotional
activity was undertaken to raise awareness of it. The accessibility of the
questionnaire was reflected in the proportion of responses submitted by
older people and disabled residents

3.21. Residents were notified of the consultation exercise via; Our Enfield,
Enfield Connected, Website homepage, Social Media, Local media
(including ethnic publications) and advertisements in public buildings
(civic centre, libraries). This resulted in the highest number of online
responses (3,191) to a consultation hosted on the Council website.

3.22. The consultation responses showed a clear preference for Free
Fortnightly combined Green Bin and food collection service with
87% of all respondents preferring this option to the charged. weekly
option.

3.23. Respondents aged over 55 and under 55 indicated the same level of
preference (both 87%) and 88% of disabled respondents also preferred
Free Fortnightly service.

3.24. The consultation enabled respondents to identify alternative
suggestions. Seasonal services, such as stopping or reducing the
green bin collections in the winter, was suggested by 6% of the
respondents. The other options identified are detailed in Appendix 2.

RE 16.062



Page 13
Page 277

3.25. The high participation in the consultation and consistent support for the
Free Fortnightly service across different demographic areas
demonstrates that the consultation outcomes are robust and that, if the
Council chooses to reduce its current service, the introduction of the
service would be equally preferred across all areas and groups of the
Borough in preference to the charged weekly service.

3.26. Appendix 2 contains further details of the consultation outcomes.
Proposal

3.27. The proposal is to replace the current free weekly Green Bin and food
collection service with one of two options designed to reduce costs.
The key elements of the two options; Free fortnightly combined Green
Bin and food collection service and Weekly charged (£60 per year)
Green Bin collection service with a separate free food collection service
for all kerbside properties are compared below:

Table 3 — Options Comparison

Free Fortnightly Charged Weekly
Service fee Free £60 (per year)
Saving £350-400k £700-800k
Implementation 4-6 Months 10-12 Months
Consultation resident 87% 13%
support
Estimated Impact on 0% -2%
Recycling
Container replacement Yes (for 140ltr bins) Yes (food

- caddies)

Day Change Limited Yes

3.28. The Free Fortnightly service provides a smaller saving of the two
options however it can be implemented to deliver a saving in a more
timely way. The modelling shows it is unlikely to have a negative
impact on the recycling performance of this service or on resident’s
collection days, and has significantly more support from the public
(87%) than the Weekly Charged service (13%).

3.29. For the reasons outlined earlier (3.1 — 3.9) it is considered that there
should be a reduction in the Green bin and food collection service. If
the Council decides that it wishes to reduce the service, it is proposed
to implement a Free Fortnightly combined green bin and food collection

RE 16.062



3.30.

3.31.

3.32.

3.33.

3.34.

3.35.

Page 14
Page 278

service borough-wide from March/April 2017. This will apply to all
properties with kerbside bins and any current or future communal green
waste bins.

The green bins will be collected on the same day of the week, although
fortnightly, as the continued existing weekly kerbside residual and
recycling collections. Retaining the weekly blue bin recycling service
will support increased recycling performance and maintain customer
satisfaction with waste and recycling services.

Separate food waste collections at estates and in other communal
areas will be unaffected and will continue at their existing collection
frequency.

Implementation

The Free Fortnightly service delivers savings through reducing the
number of collection rounds by 4; this provides direct vehicle and staff
savings.

The replacement programme for the existing vehicle fleet has been
delayed in lieu of the service review with replacements due in 2017/18
which will allow this saving to be realised. This will provide a saving
from the fleet replacement programme and also reduced maintenance
costs from a smaller fleet. Additionally, this will release space at the
depot for other alternative uses.

The fortnightly round structure will require a lower number of staff to
operate and so will provide staff savings. The proposal will enable
permanent roles to be reduced by 12. Vacant permanent roles are
currently backfilled with agency staff and so these roles can be deleted
with no change to the number of permanently employed personnel and
therefore no redundancy costs incurred.

To deliver the proposed service change it will require one-off
implementation and ongoing revenue costs. These costs will enable
additional resources to be provided to implement the change and also
provide ongoing support for the continued service delivery. The costs
provide implementation resources, communications prior to and post
the change of service and the provision for ongoing waste
enforcement. These costs will be met initially from within the service
area in 2016/17, but thereafter are included within the overall financial
model within Table 4.

RE 16.062



Page 15
Page 279

3.36. The capital and revenue costs and savings are summarised as follows:

Revenue Costs | 156 80 80
Revenue Savings -368 -491 -491
Net Total Saving -212 -411 -411
Capital Financing (Borrowing) 52 51 49
Net Impact on Budget -160 -360 -362

3.37. The required rerouting of rounds to optimise collection efficiency has
already been undertaken to calculate potential savings. Final round
details will be confirmed using existing route planning software which is
already tested and operational.

3.38. A robust communication plan is key to ensuring that residents
understand and engage with the new service and will address key
issues raised by residents in the consultation.

3.39. The new arrangements for the service will be communicated to every
affected resident through the delivery of a range of information and
materials to all households utilising the service. These communications
will include a calendar detailing collection dates and an overview of the
new service in the Council magazine which will be delivered to all
120,000 households in Enfield. Information will also be displayed
prominently on our website, adverts placed in the local press and press
releases produced to generate editorial coverage. A social media
campaign will be delivered through our Facebook and Twitter feeds
supported by a borough-wide poster campaign and information
displayed in our libraries and customer access centres. Additional
communications will also be provided for the public, following
implementation, to ensure all residents are made aware of the service
provision and their collection days.

RE 16.062



Page 16
Page 280

3.40. The consultation process flagged that some residents currently using
smaller 140 litre green bins will require additional capacity with a move
to a fortnightly service.

3.41. Analysis has shown that approximately 19,000 properties currently use
the smaller 140 litre green bin for this service. Residents with the
smaller 140 litre green bins will have the opportunity to swap these bins
for a larger 240 litre bin free of charge as part of the implementation of
the scheme. Only residents with the smaller bins will eligible to swap
them for free at this time.

3.42. Residents who are eligible for the bin-swap will be asked to request this
swap in advance of the service change and this option will be made
clear in the promotional material provided. Should requests be made
after the service commencement, a further opportunity will be provided
for these residents free of charge until 1% June 2017. Residents who
request a larger bin after the 1** June 2017 will be required to pay for
this in line with the Council’'s agreed fees and charges. For logistical
reasons, bin swaps will be carried out in batches, with the first batch
being delivered before the service change commences. Subsequent
delivery batches will be scheduled in accordance with demand. Should
a resident be awaiting delivery of a larger bin, officers enforcing the
Council's side waste policy will be instructed to apply discretion.

3.43. Biffa Waste Services Ltd who compost the organic waste once
collected, and Suez UK Ltd who operate the Refuse Recycling Site
(RRS) at Barrowell Green are aware of the potential changes and have
both - confirmed they have capacity and resources to manage any
impacts that may result from the service change.

3.44. Residents who require additional capacity (other than that in 3.41
above) will still be able to obtain a second green bin for an annual hire
charge, or take their excess organic garden material to Barrowell
Green RRS for free. Currently 40 residents have a second green bin.
The council’s existing side waste policy will continue to apply.

3.45. A detailed implementation programme will be developed if the
proposed recommendations are approved, the key stages of the
programme are as follows:

e Stage 1-Communications programme will commence from decision
being made until service implementation is complete

e Stage 2-Residents with smaller bins only will be able to request to
swap for larger bins from November 2016 until January 2017

RE 16.062



41

4:2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Page 17
Page 281

o Stage3-Bin swaps will take place ahead of service commencement
e Stage 4-Service will begin March/April 2017

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Continuing with the existing weekly free service would not provide the
required financial outcomes for the Council.

An options screening and appraisal exercise determined what changes
to the Green Bin service would deliver the necessary savings whilst
minimising impact on customer satisfaction and recycling performance.
Any alternative options that did not meet this requirement were
excluded, including seasonal variations.

A weekly charged for service was included in the public consultation
process but was clearly, from the responses received, not the preferred
option.

Separate food waste collections cannot be implemented and deliver
savings unless a charged for green bin service is also implemented
due to the cost of additional food waste collection vehicles required.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Free fortnightly green bin collections will enable the Public Realm to
deliver a saving of £160k in 2017/18 and a continued saving of £362k
from 2018/19, with minimum impact on the Council’s recycling
performance as a result of this service change

This option showed a strong preference overall and across all
demographic profiling (further details can be found within appendix 2)
by residents during the consultation process and is the option that has
the lowest one-off mobilisation costs and which poses the least
deliverability risk to the Council.

The retention of a free Green Bin collection service will ensure all
residents have access to a full range of recycling services.

Half of London authorities collect Green Bins on a fortnightly basis with
only 18% of authorities in England still collecting weekly. Access to
alternative facilities for recycling excess organic garden material such
as Household Waste Recycling Sites coupled with appropriate
enforcement action are mechanisms that other authorities have
successfully used to deliver service changes with minimal impact.

RE 16.062



5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 18
Page 282

Benchmarking data from other authorities has been used to inform the
expected savings profiles for both options within this report. The
modelling process took historical data from services and service
changes from other local authorities over a ten year period. This data
was combined with data specific to Enfield and was used to create
predictions of the expected impact of the various possible service
changes. This included the cost of staff and vehicles and the likely
impact on recycling rates as well as enforcement costs to regulate side
waste.

The costs incurred by the measures detailed in sections 3 and 5 above
are proposed to be funded through existing borrowing of up to £377k to
implement the service change and are included in the financial model
of the changes.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

Financial Implications

The proposed up to £0.377m, that may be, required for the purchase of
240l wheeled bins to assist the implementation of the proposed
service change can be funded by redirecting existing previously
agreed capital resources and will be reflected in the quarter 3 capital
monitoring report. The borrowing costs of up to circa £0.083m will be
covered from the revenue savings generated from the service change.

Table 4 in the main body of the report summarises the costs and
savings for Free Fortnightly Collection. The one-off revenue costs will
be accommodated using existing resources in 2016/17, prior to the
service implementation.

There are no capital requirements for new vehicles as there is no
requirement for new vehicles to achieve this service change.

Legal Implications

The Council has a duty under section 45 of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 to arrange for the collection of household waste.
Generally no charge can be levied for such a collection but the
Controlled Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2012 (paragraph 4
of schedule 1) permit a charge for the Green Bin collection service.

The consultation exercise undertaken complies with the common law
requirements for a fair and open consultation process and is unlikely to
be successfully challenged. There is a requirement that the

RE 16.062



6.6

6.7

7.1

8.1

8.2

Page 19
Page 283

consultation responses are properly taken into account in reaching a
decision on the matter the subject of the consultation, and by this
report, and consideration of it by Cabinet, that requirement is met.

The proposals within the report comply with the Council’'s powers and
duties.

The bins required for implementation of the proposal will be procured
through an Invitation To Further Competition under an existing
framework contract in line with contract procedure rules.

Property Implications
There are no property implications outlined within this report
KEY RISKS

The key risks associated with implementing the recommendation are:

e Financial: Savings not realised. Officers have cautiously calculated
the savings profiles and included a contingency sum to cover
unforeseen impacts of the service change on the budget.

e Operational: Lack of resources to deliver the service change: A
project manager is in place to manage the service change. A full
project team is in place to deliver each of the work streams

¢ Reputational: Residents not aware of service changes. A full
communications plan will be implemented that will take place over a
4-month period and will use a variety of mediums to ensure
residents are aware of the service change. Each household, that
uses the Green Bin collection service, will receive 2 specific leaflets
through their door notifying them of the change.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES
Fairness for All

The consultation was open to all residents. Responses were received
from a cross-section of the borough.

The move from weekly to fortnightly is not a material change to the
service. All residents will still have the ability to recycle food and garden
products. ‘

RE 16.062



8.3

8.4

10

11

12

13

Page 20
Page 284

Growth and Sustainability

The recommended service change will help reduce the Council’s
financial pressures and assist the Council to become more sustainable
moving forwards.

Strong Communities

The 12-week consultation exercise gave communities the opportunity
to voice their views on the future of services. These views were taken
into consideration in the recommendations.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

A predictive EQIA has been undertaken and it has concluded that the
proposed changes are not deemed to disproportionally impact
residents from the protected characteristic groups. Details of this report
are available to the public on request.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

Independent modelling has concluded that there should be no
significant change in the recycling performance of the service resulting
from the service change.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

A risk assessment and Safe System of Work is in place for the
collection crews collecting Green Bins. The new service is no different
operationally and so the existing RASSW remains appropriate. All
operational risk assessments are reviewed and updated regularly.

HR IMPLICATIONS

The number of personnel required to deliver the new service is less
than current personnel levels. The reduction will be realised through
the reduced use of agency resources. There will be no change to the
number of permanently employed personnel.

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

No reports of how reducing the green bin service has been detrimental
to public health have been received from other boroughs. This though
should be monitored for any unforeseen consequences.

RE 16.062



Page21
Page 285

Background Papers

None

Appendices

Appendix 1 Options Appraisal Process
Appendix 2 Consultation Summary

RE 16.062



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23
Page 287

Appendix 1

Overview of the Green Bin Options Appraisal

A three stage process was carried out to determine the options that would be
consulted on. The primary considerations when carrying out the appraisal process for
each option were:

o Will the option deliver the Council a financial saving?
o What impact will the service change have on customers?
e What impact will the service change have on the Council’s recycling rate?

Stage 1 — Developing Long List of Options

A statistical analysis known as a Cartesian Product was used to generate service
options based around the service variables set out in Figure 1. 14,400 service options
were generated from this exercise.

Figure 1 - Service Variables

Food Seasonality Green

Separation of Food Seasonality Separation of Green

Food Separate Seasonal service Green Separate

No Food No seasonal service No Green

Food Commingied Green Commingled

Food Collection Frequency Green Collection Frequency

(Surmmer) {Summer)

Food Weekly Summer Green Weekly Summer

Food Fortnightly Summer Green Fortnightly Summer

Food Three-Weekly Summer Green Three-Weekly Summer

Food Four Weekly Summer Green Four Weekly Summer

Food Collection Frequency Green Collection Frequency

(Winter) (Winter)

Food Weekly Winter Green Weekily Winter

Food Fortnightty Winter Green Fortnightly Winter

Food Three-Weekly Winter Green Three-Weekly Winter

Food Four Weekly Winter Green Four Weekly Winter

Na Foad Service in Winter No Green Service in Winter
Charging for Green

Green Mot Charged
Green Charged

Stage 2 - Shortlisting of Options

The 14,400 options were reduced to 40 by removing variations of the same option and
options that were illegal.



Page 24
Page 288

Table 1 (at page 4) summarises the 40 options. These options were reduced to 10
(highlighted in green) through the following sieving process.

Sieving exercise

15t sieve

The first sieve considered impact on the customer. It was not deemed acceptable for
services to be removed completely.

Outcome
The following options were removed:

¢ options where there was no collection service for food; and

e options were there was no organic collection service (garden) .
2"d sieve

This sieving exercise considered which options would deliver savings. Operating a
food waste service alongside a green waste service that is not charged will not deliver
savings because more resources not less will be required.

Outcome
o All separate food waste options that were accompanied by a free garden
waste service were removed.
3 sieve

This sieving exercise considered the impact of collection frequency changes during
the summer and winter for garden waste services.

Outcome

¢ Three-weekly service options removed due to scheduling difficulties and
also a higher level of customer communications being required as the
schedule would vary from month to month

Stage 3 Cost and Performance Modelling

Eunomia Research & Consuiting Ltd carried out high level modelling of the 10 options
resulting from stage 2 to determine anticipated savings and impact on recycling
performance. Figure 2 provides a pictorial summary of the 10 options.

Figure 2 - Options Modelled

Baseline| | 1 2 |[3]] 4 || 5 || 6 | 7 H 8 |[9][10
o [Mixedwith| |Mixedwith) | Mixed with ' WeeklySeparate 3 None
% | Guden || Gaden || Garden || |

T ' ﬁ I N} [ N (N
2 g Weekly Fortnightly) Weekly £ Fortnightly £ None
£ X '
26
55 eakly |, Fortnightly '_, Weekly| |Fortnightly| | Four None | |Fortnightly Four None
= s £ £ Weekly £ Weekly
28 £ £
Il | MY}

2s Unchanged (weekly) O
) .ﬁ '!
53 :

satme || 1 || 2 || s || o || s || el[ 2 |[ s |[o][uw




Page 25
Page 289

Appendix 1

Modelling outcomes
Option 1: Anticipated savings considerably lower than other options.
Outcome: Option 1 not progressed.

Options 2: This option anticipated to deliver savings of at least £400k and showed no
impact on kerbside recycling performance. Benchmarking exercise found that over
50% of London council operate a fortnightly garden waste service. Level of impact
deemed minimal.

Outcome: Option 2 put forward for detailed modelling and public consultation

Options 3: Option would deliver greater savings that option 2. Impact on kerbside
recycling level approximately 6% reduction (overall 2% reduction on N195 recycling
rate) which is less that options 4 — 10. 40% of London councils offer a charged
garden waste service. Benchmarking shows that impact on satisfaction levels are
highest in year 1 and reduce over time.

Outcome: Although potential for a certain amount of dissatisfaction the potential for
significant savings warranted its inclusion in the consultation process.

Option 4- 6: These are variants of option 3 and delivered similar levels of savings.
Recycling rate for option 4 is the same as option 3 and 1% less for option 5 and 6.
These options included a charged garden waste service with reduced winter
frequencies compared to option 3.

Outcome. These options were not put forward for consultation because they offered a
reduced service compared to option 3.

Option 7- 9: These options although delivering the highest savings further reduced
the Council’s recycling rate and had a bigger impact on customers.

Outcome: These options were considered to have too negative an impact on
customer and the Councils recycling rate so were not considered for consultation.

Option 10: This was included to understand what the cost savings would be for not
operating either of the services. If implemented the Council’s kerbside recycling rate
would be reduced by approximately 18%.

The two options that delivered the required savings and had least impact on
customers and the Council’s recycling rate were determined as 2: Free fortnightly
combined green bin and food collection service and 3: Weekly charged (£60 per
year) green bin collection service and free separate food collection service.
These two options were subject to detailed modelling and formed the basis of the
public consultation process.



Page 26
Page 290

as1219x3
Buinalg

10} }jnsay

feuy

pabieyn
usalo

pabieyd
JON U3l

pabieydn
IEETS)

pabieyn
JON U@al9)

pabieyn
JON usalo

pabiey)d
JON UdaI9)

pabieys
uaaln

JSJUIAA
WYEETTY
usalo

18JUIAN
ApyBiupo
usalo

1BJUIAN
Anybiupiod
usalo

AyBiupio-
usal9)

JBJUIAA
Apjaapn
EEN)

JSJUIAA
Apybiupio4
usalo

J3JUIM
Kousnbaig
- usaln

Jawuwng

WYEETY
usalo

Jswwng
Apybilupo
uaalg

Jawwng
ApybiupoS
usaln)

Jawuwng

WEETY
EE(S)

Jawwng

WNEETV
usalio) |

Jswwng
ApybrupoS
uaalr)

Jawwng
Aouanbaiq
TETIT)

ajeledag
uaalo)

ajeledag
usalo

ajeledag
IEET()

pa|buiwwo)
uaalo

pa|buiwwo)
Ul

pa|buiuwon
uaalo

uonesedag
usalo

80IAI3S
[euoseas

ON

90IAI9S
|euoseas

ON

ERIINER
|euoseas

ON

30IAISS
|[euoseag

90IAISS
|euoseas

ON

90IAISS
jeuosesas

ON

_m:omm.ow

JBJUIAA Jjsuwwng
I EETV IVELIV
POo04 PO0S
JSJUIAA Jswung
WVEETVA WEETY)
poo pood
IBJUIAA Jsuwng
Apisapn Aaap
poo4 pood
Jswwng
AnyBiupo4 INVEETT
poo poo4
JOJUIM Jawwng
EETY) WEETY)
poo4H Po0o4
IBJUIAA Jawwng
Apybiupo4  Apybiupo
poo4 Po0o4
JOJUIMA Jawwnsg

Kousnbaiq Aousnbaiy uopesedsg
- poogq

poo

pooy

suondo uig usaio - | 9|qel

aleledoag
poo4H

aleledag
poo4

ojeledag
poo4

pajbuiwwo)
poo4

pajbuiliwon
pood

pa|buiwwo)
poo



Page 27

Page 291

pableyd
IEETS)

pabieyn
JON usali9

pabieyd
uaalo

VIN

pabley)n
JON U@3l9)

T xipuaddy

1SJUIM
I EET
-9aly|
usalo

JBJUIA
Ao
Jno-
usaln)

1SJUIN
Aesm
lno4
usaln)

VIN

IDJUINA
Aesm
uaalo

Jswwng
ApyBrupio
usal

Jawwng

ApyBiupio
usalo

Jawwng
Apyblupo
uaalo)

VIN

Jawwng

Apieap
usalin

ajeiedssg
IEETTS)

djeledag
uaalo

aleledag
usalo

usalo oN

aleledag
usalo

20IAI2g
[euoseas

=L ]IVETS
|jeuoseag

30IA19S
|euoseas

ERIIWER
|euoseas

ON

JOINIBS |

feuoseas
ON

IS
IEETY)
poo4

IBJUIM
Apieapn
poo4

18JUI
NI
poo+

JBJUIAA
AeapA
poo4

IBJUIA
WEETY)
poo4

Jawwng
Asapn
poo4

Jawwng
IAVEETV
poo

Jawwng
PNEETY
pood

Jawwing
INEETY
poo4

Jswwng
IINEEIY)
poo4

gjeledag
poo4

ajeledag
poo4

aleledag
poo4

aleledag
pood

ojeiedag
poo4




JSJUIA

YEEIY) lawwng IBJUIAA Jawwng
pableyn ino4 WEETY) sjeledeg 90INIBS Ap@spn IEETY a)jeledog
usalo uaalo) uaalo udal) |euoseasg poo4 poo4 poo4
JBJUIA Jswwng IBJUIAA Jauwwng
pabieyn Ajybiupoy WNEETY) aleledag CR]INETN WEETY WEETY) aleledag
JON usal9 uaalo) SEETS) uaalo |euoseas poo4 poo4 poo-
JSJUIM Jawwng ISJUIM Jawwng
pabieyn Apybiupio4 WNEETTY ajeledag 90INIBS WYEEIY) Apjoapn aleledag
uaalo IEETS) uaalo) | uaai9) |euosess poo4 poo4 poo4
w0 o
M Q IBJUINA Jawwng JBJUIN Jawwng _
23 pableyD Ul 92IM9S Aybiuno4 gleledag 20INIRS WNEETY WEETY) aleledag
o & JON Us3I9)  Ud3lI9) ON uaalo usalo |euoseag poo4 poo4 poo4
IBJUIN Jawwng IBJUIAA Jawwng
pableyp  ul 92IMIBS Aybiunio4 ajeledag ER]IVETS WNEETYY WEETY) djesedas
usale  ulal9 ON usalio usalo) |euoseas poo poo4 poo4
JBJUINA
IEETY Jawwng JAJUIN Jawwng
pabliey)n -8a1y | Apybiupio4 ajeledag EB]INETS WEETY) WNEEIY) djeledag
JON usal9 uaalo usal9 usalo) |euoseas poo4 poo4 poo4 |
Buinelg JAJUIM Jswwng . JBJUIM BEE_..w ,
10} JInsay _ pebieyy Asusnbaiy Aousnbaiy uopesedss >o:w=_oo._"_ >o=w:uo._"_ :o_uEmnow
leuld  usalp uaaio usailo ~ usaln jeuoseas _uoo"_ _uoo"_ poo4




Page 29

Page 293

pabieyd
IEEY]S)

pabieyd
JON U931

pableydn
usalo

pabley)n
JON u®3l9)

pabieyn
u9alo)

pabieyd
JON Us2i9

T xipuaddy

1BJUIMN
Apubiupiod
usai9)

ISUIM
Ul 90IAI8S
usals) ON

IBYUIAN
Ul 30IAI8S
uaalIs) ON

J3JUIM
Adjeap
-2aly |

usalo

JSJUIAA
Aospn

-9aJ4y]

uaaln

JBJUINA
WNEETYY
ino4

usalo

._3.._3

_numwu:o hn:u_.._um._...__ - Kouanbaig
_ 9  udlaun

J0INIDS

lawuwng "
Apybiupio4 ajeledag |BUOSESS |
usalo usalo) ON YIN
Jawwng ! IBJUIAA
IEETY gjeledag  9oINBS WEETY)
uaalo u9alo) | |euOSeasS poo4
Jawwng I2JUIpA
WNEETY) aleledag a0INIBS INEETY
IEETS) usalo) |euoseas poo
Jawwng | JBJUIAN
WVEETYY ajeledag 90IAIDG | IEETY
usalo) uaalo) |euoseas : poo
JBswwns JBJUIN
Apeapn ajeiedag 90INIDS EETY
usalg) udalo) |euosess poo4
lawwng JOJUIN
WYEEIY) ajesedag 90IAI9S Aespn
uaal9) uaalc) |euosess noom
, ngEzm :
___Euu...w%m.‘
3 ___mw

VIN

Jawwng
IPEETV

pood

Jawwng
WEETY)
pood

Jawwng
WYEETY)
poo4

Jswuwnsg
Ao
poo4

Jawwng
EEIY)

poo4

pood ON

aleledag
pood

ajeledag
poo4

~9jejedag

poo4

aleledag
poo4

dleledag
poo4

€¢

(44

T4

0¢

6l

8l



Page 30
Page 294

10§ u_amom

pablieyn
usalo

pabieyn
JON udal9)

pabieyo
IEETS)

pabiey)d
JON u9al9

pabieyd
usalo

pabieyn
JON u@al9)

pabieyd
usai

JSJUIN
Ao
-2aly ]

usaio

JOJUIAA
A
Jno4
usalio

JBJUINN
Apteam
no4
(IEETS)

JSJUIM
Ao
usalo

SJUIM
Apieapn
uaalo)

ISJUIA
Anybiupio4
usalo

 Jajuim
_m_..mucoauo._n_
. us’ain

Jawuwng
Apybiupo4
uaalio

JJswuwns
Aybiupio4
usalo

Jowwng

AnyBiupo4
uaalio)

Jawwng

Apieapn
usalo

Jawwng

PEETY
usalo

Jawwng

Anybiupo4
uaalion)

Jawwng

ajesedas
uaalo)

ajeledag
IEEYS)

ajeiedag
uaalo

aleledag
usalo

ajeledag
uaalo)

ajeledag
usalo

Aausnbaiy :oaﬂunmm

usai9

usaig

80IAIBS
|euosess

=LV
[euoseag

90IAI9S
|euoseag

80IAISS
|euosess

ON

20IAI9S
|euoseas

ON

aoIAIas
|euoseas

ON

|euoseag

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

JBJUIM

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

V/IN

VIN

. sjewwing

poo4 ON

pood ON

pood oN

poo4 ON

poo4 ON

poo4 ON

fousnbaiy Aousnbaiy :&um.mnom

_uoou

_unat

- pooj

6C

8z

yx4

9¢

T4

ve



Page 31

Page 295

JBIUIAA

VEETY)
pabieyp ino4
TEETS) usalo
JBJUINA
pabieyy Apybiupod
JON U23al9 usalo
JBJUIAA
pabieys Apybiupo4
usalo usaln
JSJUIM
pabieyD) Ul 92IAI9S
JON Udal)  udal9) ON
JSJUIM
pabieyn ul 8oIA18g
usalo  u2alo ON
JBJUIM
IEETY
pabieyo -3a1y|
JON udali9 usalg
sspiexy |
Bumalg _ - Jajuipm
lojynsay  pabieyp Aousnbaiy
leuy _ usain

usalp _

T xipuaddy

Jawwng
IEETY) ajeiedag
usalo usalo
Jawwng
NEEIY) gleledsag
uaalo uaalo
Jawwng
WOEETY) ajeledag
VEET(S) usalo)
Jawwng
Apybiuno4 aleledag
uaalo uaalo
Jawwng
Aybiupo ajeledag
IEEN ) uaalo)
Jawwng
Aybiupo4 aleiedag
uaelo usal9
Jswwing

~fousnbaiy uopeiedeg.

usain

usaln

80IAI9S
|[euosess

aJIAles
|euoseas

80IAI9S
|euoseas

20IAI9S
|Jeuoseas

20IAIaS
|euoseag

=LITNETS
|[euoseag

 jeuosess

VIN

VIN

VIN

V/N

VIN

oMU

fouenbaij Aouenbeiy uopesedss

pooy

VIN poo oN

VIN poo4 oN

VIN poo ON

VIN poo4 oN

VIN poo4 ON

VIN poo4 oN
Jawung

_ — it =

S€

ve

€e

ce

L€

0¢



Page 32
Page 296

404 u_-_wdm_

VIN

pabieyd

JON U99I5) -

pablieyd

usalo)

pabieyn

JON usalo)

pabieyn
uaslo

pabieyn
JON usal9

VIN

JSIUIAN
u| 90IAI8S
usal9) ON

1B
Ul 92IAI8S
uaals) oN

JSJUIM
JEETV
-99Jy |
usalo

JBJUIN
Apisapn
=]
usalo

18juIp
Ataap
Jno4
usalo

J9JUIM

~ pebieyy Aouenbaiy

Eﬂhw

usain

VIN

Jswwng

WEETY)
EETS)

Jawwng

Apisapn
usaln

Jawwng

WEETY
usalo

Jawuwng

IAVEET
ualI9)

Jawwng

Apieapn
usaln)

Jswwng
Kouanbaig

usalg oN

ajeledag
udalo)

ajeledag
IEETTS)

ajeledag
uaalo

ajeledag
uaaln

aleledag
EETS)

. uonesedag
_.BEQ

90IAI3S
|euoseas

ON

30IAI9S
|euoseas

30INISS
|[euoseag

20IAISS
|[euosess

=LTVETS
|euoseag

=RIVETS
|[euosesag

VIN

VIN

VIN

V/IN

VIN

VIN

UM
uaau_

VIN

V/IN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

. ._uEE__m :
hn:auwn..m hu:u:uo._n__ :n_um.-wn_um _
_m:ammmm.

poo4 ON

poo4 ON

poo4 ON

pood ON

poo4 ON

poo ON

uoo:...w

(34

oy

6¢

8¢

Lg |

9¢



Appendix 1

Page 33
Page 297



Page 34
Page 298



Page 35
Page 299

APPENDIX TWO -GREEN BIN CONSULTATION -:
Summary
Overall
There were 3,191 responses to the questionnaire.
Respondents

e Three-quarters of responses (75%) are from respondents who live in the west of the
borough

e 16% are disabled — reflecting the borough population

e 65% are over 50

Key findings

e Almost 9 out of 10 (87%) prefer fortnightly to a charged collection service

e Around 1 out of 8 (13%) would prefer a weekly charged service

e 6 out of 10 (61%) of all respondents state that moving to a fortnightly collection would
either impact them ‘slightly’ or ‘not at all’

e A clear majority (71%) of residents stated that they would be impacted ‘a lot’ by
having to pay a £60 charge

Size of green bin

Those who have a slimline bin (1401) are more likely to favour the fortnightly collection option
than those households who have the standard sized bin (2401) — 89% and 86% respectively.
Both are very similar to the borough average (87%). We cannot be confident there are
significantly different opinions between those who have the slimline bins and those who have
the standard size bins but it is clear that the majority of residents, regardless of the size of
bin, have a preference for the fortnightly collection option.

Whether residents have a 240l or 140! green bin, similar numbers said they will be affected
‘a lot’ (Q6) if the service was to be fortnightly.

Postal district

The base sizes at postal district level can be small, and thus caution should be exercised
when analysing the data. It appears that an overwhelming number of respondents from each
postal district, including those who live in areas where the base size is small, favour
fortnightly collection. The proportion of those in favour of a fortnightly collection range from
between 77% in EN4 (out of a total of 69 respondents) to 93% in N18 (out of a total of 91
respondents).

The preference for fortnightly collection is higher in the less affluent areas of the borough
than it is in the more affluent west of the borough — 93% compared to 85%. A minority prefer
the charged service option, with more of those in the more affluent areas preferring this than
those in the south and east of the borough — 15% compared to 7%.

With income levels being higher in the west, this may explain the higher proportion of
residents in the south and east who prefer the fortnightly collection option. This is reflected in
the analysis of the responses of those who receive Council Tax Support and/or Housing



Page 36
Page 300

Benefit. Respondents were asked if they received these benefits as it is felt that whether or
not someone receives benefits is a better indicator of high or low income than responses to
the standard questions on employment status and social classification/stratification.

Council tax support and housing benefit

Only 6% of the 125 respondents who receive Council Tax Support and/or Housing Benefit
stated that they preferred a charged service, while more than nine out of 10 said they would
rather have a fortnightly collection service. Of those who do not receive either benefit,
around nine out of 10 (87%) are in favour of the fortnightly collection. This, of course, is
similar to the average for the borough as whole as the majority of respondents do not
receive either benefit.

Disability

In total 16% of all respondents said they have a disability, reflecting the proportion of
disabled residents in the borough — 15.4% according to the 2011 Census. This suggests the
consultation was accessible to those who have a disability. Of those who have a disability,
around nine out of 10 (89%) prefer fortnightly collection.

Age groups

The number of responses from the younger age groups was low, particularly among those
aged 29 or under. Of those age groups with at least 100 responses, views are similar with
the preference for fortnightly collection varying from 83% (35 to 39 year olds) to 89% (45 to
49 year olds). We cannot be confident that there are significant differences in the views of
the various age groups. If there were differences, these would probably be best explained by
looking at other factors, such as income, that may influence choice.

Composting

With regards to opportunities for composting, the following question was included and the
responses below received:

Given the options proposed, would you be interested in a
free/subsidised home composting bin?

826 (25.9%) Yes
15613 (47.4%) No
852 (26.7%) Don't know / maybe

Analysis of Literal Responses to Q8 (“/f you have any suggestions or further
comments on our proposals, let us know”).

1,433 residents responded to this question. Not all responses were suggestions. A number
of respondents simply stated a preference for free fortnightly collection or responded with
‘N/A” and ‘no other comments to make’

Some respondents to this question made more than one comment/suggestion

It was clear from the analysis that two suggestions stood out: retain the current approach
(that is, free weekly collection) and a form of seasonal collection (for example, fortnightly
collection in the Autumn and Winter, weekly collection in the Spring and Summer)



Page 37
Page 301

Around a fifth (18%) of those who responded to Q8, said they would like to retain the
current weekly collection. This is 6% of the total number of respondents who
completed the questionnaire

Around one in eight (13%) of those who responded to Q8, suggest the Council should
consider using a form of collection whereby frequency is higher in the warmer
months but less frequent during the rest of the year. This represents 6% of all
respondents

It should be noted that many different variations of seasonal collection were suggested. They
varied by frequency and when the higher/lower frequency collections should take place.
From reading these responses, it would be difficult to establish common ground on what
would be considered acceptable frequencies of collection at the various times of the year

Around one in five (18%) made other suggestions. A selection are listed below:

+ Fortnightly collection for the other bins (that is, blue lid and black lid bins) — it should
be noted that several other respondents made it clear that they would rather see the
green bin collected fortnightly and the other bins collected weekly

e Collect food weekly but garden materials should be collected fortnightly

e The Council should make savings elsewhere (for example, reduce staff salaries,
tackle benefit fraud effectively and abandon the plans for Cycle Enfield) and cut other
services — such suggestions were often accompanied by a clear preference for
retaining the current weekly and free collection

e The Council increase revenues by charging more for other Council services

e For free green bin collection to be available only on request (for example, residents
call the Council to order a collection)

¢ Green bin to be collected twice a week

e Charge residents who do not recycle

It should not be assumed that those residents who submitted suggestions were opposed to
the proposals. In fact, a number of residents suggested they were satisfied with the proposal
for fortnightly collection as long as at least one of the following were included/in
place/available: ‘

An extra green bin is made available to households

Larger green bins (that is, 240! rather 140l)

Changes to the service are clearly communicated

Skips are made available in parks and at the end of streets to enable residents to dispose of
their kitchen and garden materials

Opening hours of Barrowell Green are extended

Summary Conclusion

Analysis of the data indicates that not only do the majority of respondents prefer the
fortnightly collection option, but so do disadvantaged groups, such as disabled residents and
those on low incomes in the borough — a key consideration for the Council. Even when
given the option of identifying a different option (in question 8), most people did not do so,
suggesting that the fortnightly collection option is generally preferred. The data suggests that
the size of the green bin currently used by a household does not impact on preference.



Page 38
Page 302

Green bin consultation
Report - Detail

Methodology

Residents were engaged using both online and paper questionnaires, with the
questions being the same in both versions. The online questionnaire was hosted on
the Council website, with paper copies made available in the Hub libraries and in the
Council’'s main customer access centres.

The information provided with the online and paper questionnaires informed
residents how they could contact the Consultation and Resident Engagement
Services Team if they had any queries or required assistance with participation.

The online questionnaire could be translated, using Google translate, and the text
could be increased in size.

The consultation was launched on 10 June and closed on 5 September 2016. During
that time, a total of 3,191 residents completed either the online or paper
questionnaire.

Marketing and promotion

Due to the potential impact of the proposals and the fact that green bin collection is a
universal service, it was important to ensure that coverage was widespread. The
wide ranging marketing and promotional campaign included:
¢ A full page article in Our Enfield (the Council magazine that is delivered to all
households in the borough)
o Adverts in the local press
e Adverts in non-English, local press (for example, Londra)
e ‘Six sheet’ posters across the borough, in areas of high footfall (through JC
Decaux)
¢ Digital marketing
o Tweeting from the Enfield Council Twitter account
e Posting on Facebook from the Council account

Respondents

To help further understand the data a number of questions were asked to establish
the age, disability/non-disability status, where respondents lived (by postal district)
and whether or not they claimed housing benefit and/or Council Tax Support.

Ability to establish the views of residents with low incomes was of importance as one
of the proposals of the consultation was to charge for collection of the green bin.
Asking whether or not respondents receive Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax
Support is more effective than using social stratification definitions and work status. It
would be seen as intrusive to request information relating to household income.
Even establishing household income is limited as it does not include outgoings, size
of household and other factors.



Page 39
Page 303

Please note: for each of these questions, respondents were given the opportunity to
respond with ‘Prefer not to say’. As a result, the figures showing, for example, the
age groups of respondents, do not necessarily add to 100%.

The chart below (see Chart 1) shows the totals and proportions of respondents.

Profile of respondents

Under 55 (1207) N 41%
55orover (1713) I 54%
Disabled (512) NG 16%
Not disabled (2426) | 76%
T e EA i Tt o LA MSBSRESESNeTH| 75%

the west (2391)
Those who live in
I 23%

south or east (735)

Chart 1

Base sizes in brackets

Key findings
Preference for ‘fortnightly free’ over ‘weekly charged’ (Q5)

Residents were asked whether they would prefer a ‘free fortnightly’ or a ‘weekly
charged’ collection (£60). Almost nine out of 10 (87%) prefer the free fortnightly
option, with around one in eight (13%), preferring a weekly charged collection (see
Chart 2).

Chart 2

Q5. From the following two options, please indicate
which option most suits your needs? all respondents

13%

= Free fortnightly = Weekly charged



Page 40
Page 304

Base size: 3,191 residents

~ Around seven times as many respondents prefer the free fortnightly collection. The
free fortnightly option is the preferred option among all the various groups of
respondents.

Although the majority of each group of respondents prefer the free fortnightly option,
there appears to be some differences between some comparative groups. For
example, free fortnightly appears to be preferred by the those who live in the less
affluent areas (93%) and those who receive either Housing Benefit and/or Council
Tax Support (94%). See Chart 3.

Chart 3

Q5. From the following two options, please indicate

which option most suits your needs (free fortnightly)?
Comparison by group

Under 55 (1297) eessssssssssssssssssssssssssms 87%

55 or over (1713) mEessssssssssssssssssssssesses  879%

Disabled (512) eesssssssss—————— 8%,

Not disabled (2426) esssssssssssssssssssss————"=5=u 87%

Those who live in the west (2391) EeesesssssTeTETS——————————— 859,

Those who live in south or east (735) eessssssTTETTTEEE——————— 3%,
Those who receive benefits (125) TEEEETEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE—————— 94 %,

Those who do not receive benefits (2927) eesssssssssssssETEs—————— 87%

Base sizes are in brackets

The contrast in perceptions between those who live in the more affluent part of the
borough (that is, the west) and the south and east, represents the biggest difference
between the comparative groups — 85% of those in west, compared to 93% in the
south and east. A similar contrast in opinions is evident when comparing the views of
those who receive benefits and those who do not — 94% compared to 87%.

The free fortnightly option is preferred to the weekly charged option among
respondents regardless of the type of property they live in. However, there are clear
differences by housing type, with respondents living in what are, usually, smaller
properties, preferring the free fortnightly proposal, with around nine out of ten of
those living in either flats/maisonettes (91%) or terraced houses (90%) expressing a
preference for the fortnightly option (see Chart 4).

Chart 4



Page 41
Page 305

Q5. From the following two options, please

indicate which option most suits your needs (free
fortnightly)? Comparison by type of property

Flats/maisonettes (190) NGNS 91%
Terraced (1404) NG 90%
Semi-detached (1245) GGG 86%
Detached (317) NN 78%

Base sizes in brackets

Those who live in flats/maisonettes or terraced houses appear to prefer the
fortnightly free collection proposal than those who live in either semi-detached (86%)
or detached properties (78%). This may, in part, be explained by the larger homes
traditionally having larger gardens and thus, more likely to want to dispose of garden
materials, or have more materials that they wish to put in the green bins.

Potential impact of the free fortnightly proposal (Q6a and Q6c¢)

When asked to what extent the free fortnightly option would impact them, around a
third (37%) stated ‘a lot’ (see Chart 5).

Chart 5

Q6a. How would the two options impact upon
you....free fortnightly? all respondents

MAlot mSlightly ®Notatall ' Don'tknow

Base size: 3,191

Although over a third said the impact would be ‘a lot’, the majority felt that it would
have only slight impact or not at all (61%).

However, there are some differences among the various groups. For example, it
appears that those who live in what are traditionally regarded as larger properties,
are more likely to feel that the fortnightly free proposal will impact on them more than
others (see Chart 6).



Page 42
Page 306

Chart 6

Q6a. How would the two options impact upon

you....free fortnightly ('a lot')? comparison by type of
property

Detached (317) NN 53%
Semi-detached (1245) IS 12%
Terraced (1404) I 31%
Flats/maisonettes (190) INEEEGNGG_GEG 25%

Base sizes are in brackets

The findings indicate the larger the property, the bigger the impact on that
household. Those who live in detached properties are more likely to feel that it
impacts them ‘a lot’ (53%), followed by those who live in semi-detached properties
(42%), then those who live in terraced houses (31%) and finally those residents who
live in flats/maisonettes (25%).

Just over two-fifths (43%) of disabled residents feel that the free fortnightly proposal
will impact them ‘a lot’. A number of disabled residents (in response to Q6c, an open-
ended question where respondents are asked how the proposals will affect them),
stated that they are concerned about not being able to move the green bins as they
will be heavier. In view of this, it is suggested, if the free fortnightly proposal is
implemented, the Council further promotes the assisted collection scheme, making it
clear to residents how they can receive assistance.

Analysis of the literal responses to Q6c suggests that those respondents who feel
that free fortnightly will impact on them ‘a lot’ believe that they will be affected by
three main issues (based on 1,047 responses):
¢ Smell of food, that has not been eaten, being in the receptacle for a longer
period of time (20%)
¢ Food deposited in the receptacle attracting insects and vermin (16%)
‘We already pay Council Tax' / ‘Collection was listed as an item on Council
Tax bills so we should receive a rebate’ / ‘Council Tax was recently increased’
(14%)

It should be noted that a number of respondents identified more than one issue.

A number of other issues were raised:
e The bins are too small (this issue was referred to respondents who either a
standard size or slimline bin)
Potential increase in fly-tipping
¢ Neighbours using bins other peoples’ without consent
The need to make additional trips to Barrowell Green



Page 43
Page 307

Potential impact of the weekly charged proposal (Q6b and Q6c¢)

When asked to what extent a charged weekly collection would impact them, almost
three-quarters (71%) said ‘a lot’, while around a fifth (18%) said it would impact them
‘slightly’ (see Chart 6).

Chart7

Q6b. How would the two options impact upon
you....weekly charged? All respondents

HA lot B Slightly = Not at all W Don't know

Base: 3,191 respondents

The proportion of those who said the impact would be ‘a lot’ (71%) is ten times
higher than the amount of those who said ‘not at all’ (7%).

The majority of each group of respondents feel that the weekly charged proposal will
impact them ‘a lot'. However, there are differences among some of the comparative
groups. For example, disabled residents are more likely to say ‘a lot’ compared to
those who are not disabled — 78% compared to 68% (see Chart 8).

Chart 8

Q6b. How would the two options impact upon

you....weekly charged ('a lot')? comparison by group

Under 55 (1297) meeeesssssssssssssmmmm  69%
55 or over (1713) meesssssssssss—————— 70%
Disabled (512) =—————————— 7 8%,
Not disabled (2426) essssssssssS—————— (8%
Those who live in the west (2391) EEEEsTsETTEEEE——————— 69%
Those who live in south or east (735) TEEEEEEEETTEEEEES———————— 75%
Those who receive benefits (125) SeesssssssssssTE——————— 77%
Those who do not receive benefits (2927) eeesssssssssssEs————— 70%

Base sizes in brackets



Page 44
Page 308

In addition to disabled residents feeling that a weekly charged collection will impact
them more than those who are not disabled, there also appear to be differences
between those who receive benefits and those who don't (77% compared to 70%)
and residents in the south and east compared to those who live in the west (75%
compared to 69%). Due to the main implication for residents of the weekly charged
proposal being the cost, this may, in part, explain why those traditionally associated
with lower incomes being more likely to state that it will impact on them ‘a lot'.

Interest in having a free or subsidised composting bin (Q7 and Q8)

Residents were asked, given the options proposed, if they would be interested in a
free or subsidised composting bin. Around a quarter (26%) expressed an interest
(see Chart 9).

Chart 9

Q. Given the options proposed, would you be

interested in a free or subsidised home
composting bin? All respondents

Yes NN 26%
No Sy pe e )i i el T ) 4 7%
Maybe/Don't know NN 27%

Base: 3,191 residents

More respondents state that they would not want a compost bin than those who
would (26% compared to 47%) while around a quarter (27%) said they were not
sure.

Some residents suggested that there should have been an option of ‘we already
have one’. However, this option was not provided as the question was aimed at
establishing, among other things, if composting bins would help to deal with potential
excess waste if the free fortnightly option was implemented.

The responses to Q8 (If you have any suggestions or further comments on our
proposals, let us know) contained a number of references to the question asking
about whether or not residents would be in interested in a free or subsidised
compost bin. A number of respondents stated that they see the value of the compost
bins. However, a number of issues were raised, including:

e The bins attracting vermin and insects

e Some garden materials cannot be composted (for example, thick branches

and diseased plants)



Page 45
Page 309

¢ Reluctance to put food, that has not been eaten, into compost bins due to the
potential smell

e Not enough space for a compost bin

e Accepting a compost bin would give the impression of acceptance of the
proposals

o Compost bins will not make up for less frequent collections

Suggestions for alternative approaches (Q8)

More than two out of five (1,433) residents responded to this question. Not all
responses were suggestions. A number of respondents simply stated a preference
for free fortnightly collection or responded with ‘N/A’ and ‘no other comments to
make’ It should be noted that some respondents to this question made more than
one comment and/or suggestion. '

It was clear from the analysis that two suggestions stood out: retain the current
approach (that is, free weekly collection) and a form of seasonal collection (for
example, fortnightly collection in the Autumn and Winter, weekly collection in the
Spring and Summer). Around a fifth (18%) of those who responded, said they would
like to retain the current weekly collection. This is 6% of the total number of
respondents who completed the questionnaire.

Approximately one in eight (13%) of those who completed the questionnaire, suggest
the Council should consider using a form of collection whereby frequency is higher in
the warmer months but less frequent during the rest of the year. This represents 6%
of all respondents. It should be noted that many different variations of seasonal
collection were suggested. They varied by frequency and when the higher/lower
frequency collections should take place. From reading these responses, it would be
difficult to establish common ground on what would be considered acceptable
frequencies of collection at the various times of the year.

Around one in five (18%) made other suggestions. A selection is listed below:

e Fortnightly collection for the other bins (it should be noted that several other
respondents made it clear that they would rather see the green bin collected
fortnightly and the other bins collected weekly)

e Collect food weekly but garden materials should be collected fortnightly

e The Council should make savings elsewhere (for example, reduce staff
salaries, tackle benefit fraud effectively and abandon the plans for Cycle
Enfield) and cut other services — such suggestions were often accompanied
by a clear preference for retaining the current weekly and free collection

¢ The Council increase revenues by charging more for other Council services

e For free green bin collection to be available only on request (for example,
residents call the Council to order a collection)

o Green bin to be collected twice a week

e Charge residents who do not recycle

It should not be assumed that those residents who submitted suggestions were
opposed to the proposals. In fact, a number of residents suggested they were



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

APPENDIX 2

Call-in request form submitted by 8 Members of
the Council



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49

CALL-IN OF DECISION

(please ensure you complete all sections fully)

Please return the completed original signed copy to:
James Kinsella, Democratic Services Team, 3" Floor, Civic Centre

TITLE OF DECISION: e 2 e O ,

DECISION OF: < —c—b— e
DATE OF DECISION LIST PUBLICATION: Z2i | o\ &

LISTNO: KOUR1G v\ e — 1) ‘
(* N.B. Remember you must call-in a decision and notify Democratic Services Team
within 5 working days of its publication).

A decision can be called in if it is a corporate or portfolio decision made by either
Cabinet or one of its sub-committees, or a key decision made by an officer with
delegated authority from the Executive.

(@) COUNCILLORS CALLING-IN (The Council’s constitution requires seven
signatures or more from Councillors to call a decision in). :

(1) Signature:=3..\-. .k, Print Name: ... &G 2,
/
(2) Signature: .- £/ LQ/ﬁRw:eC—.c’ Print Name: /2. /. POARCE. ...
] . ) — 2 r ,
3) Signatu@.@ P Print Nameft AN S VTV @E~
)

(b) SCRUTINY PANEL RESOLUTION (copy of minute detailing formal
resolution to request call-in to be attached).

NAME OF PANEL: GVuem) ¢ &Jw}\/&j Clhee. -

DATE OF PANEL:

T™OTMMNIN/A £._.0A



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

APPENDIX 3

Reasons for Call-in by Councillor calling in the
decision

&

Briefing Note in response to called in decision
TO FOLLOW



This page is intentionally left blank



Lestnlo: B2 [10/ 39%/6«—/?'

1) Reason why decision is being called in:

See Atlacked .

2) Outline of proposed alternative action:

See. Qtackad .

3) Do you believe the decision is outside the policy framework?

St Athached

(3) If Yes, give reasons: n/a

For DST USE ONLY:

Checked by Monitoring Officer for validation —

Name of Monitoring Officer: Date: 2/ [ O / 20/ é




Page 54
DST - Ref No:

a. SCRUTINY PANEL RESOLUTION (copy of minute detailing formal
resolution to request call-in to be attached).

NAME OF PANEL: Guyuiaw & SC“U‘"’B:& Chae

DATE OF PANEL.:

(1) Reason why decision is being called in:

1.0 Reduction in service. The decision will result in a reduction in service for
residents.

2.0 Consultation. Fewer than 1% of the residents of Enfield responded.

3.0 Swapping of bins. The first period of time that residents can swap is too
far away from the proposed change over from weekly to fortnightly. The
second period needs to be a month longer because it will only be when
summer hits that you will really notice how much green waste you actually
‘create. '

4,0  Savings. The decision does not make consideration for introducing a
. seasonal service with the additional savings being found from reducing
contamination.

5.0 Background Research. The report gives very little information about what
work had been done regarding the costings of the IT for example if it were
to stay weekly at a charge also how it would have been implemented.

6.0 Consultation document. Not all people understood the comment section.
The section did not ask for other service alternatives, it was up to people to
work that bit out.

Outline of proposed alternative action: s . . o
The decision to be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration of the a_va||able options in view
of the concerns raised relating to the reduction in service, option appraisal and consultation

process.

(3) Do you believe the decision is outside the policy framework?
No

(4) If Yes, give reasons:

DST/PPB/May02



Page 55

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
10" November 2016
RESPONSE TO
REASONS FOR CALL IN

Part 1

Relating to the Following Decision:

Decision: The Green Bin Service Change
Decision Date: 19" October 2016
Decision of: Cabinet

Key Decision No: KD4376

1. Introduction

Since 2010 Enfield Council has had to find savings of £118m and now
faces finding additional savings of £56m by 2019/20.

The green bin collection service was put forward as a viable means to find
significant savings through alternative service provision, particularly as it is
non-statutory, unlike refuse and recycling.

Options around the different variations of the green bin collection service,
which is currently a free weekly collection, were explored in terms of their
savings potential, impact on recycling performance and potential impact on
resident satisfaction.

After extensive evaluation, two options were taken forward to public

consultation:

e Free fortnightly combined green bin and food collection service

e Weekly charged (£60 per_year) green bin collection service with a
separate free food collection service for all kerb-side properties.

The consultation responses showed a clear preference for Free Fortnightly
combined green bin and food collection service (87% supportive). For this
and other reasons set out by officers in the Cabinet report of the 19" October
it was decided to adopt a Free fortnightly combined green bin and food
collection service starting in March/April 2017.



Page 56

Reasons for Call In

The reasons why the decision was called in are as follows: -

. Reduction in service. The decision will result in a reduction in service for

residents.

. Consultation. Fewer than 1% of the residents of Enfield responded.

. Swapping of bins. The first period of time that residents can swap is too far
away from the proposed change over from weekly to fortnightly. The second
period needs to be a month longer because it will only be when summer hits
that you will really notice how much green waste you actually create.

. Savings. The decision does not make consideration for introducing a
seasonal service with the additional savings being found from reducing
contamination.

. Background research. The report gives little information about what work
has been done regarding the costings of the IT for example if it were to stay
weekly at a charge also how it would have been implemented.

. Consultation document. Not all people understand the comment section.
The section did not ask for other service alternatives, it was up to people to
work that bit out.

Response to Reasons for Call In

. Reduction in service

The Council is faced with making savings of £56m, which means we have to
deliver services differently. The green bin service is non-statutoryand as
stated in Section 3 of the Cabinet report, 58% of English local authorities and
50% London boroughs already operate a fortnightly service, with only 18% of
English local authorities still operating a free weekly service. It is likely that
this number will reduce still further.

. Consultation

The green bin service is a household service, not a service for individuals.
The Council received 3,191 responses from approximately 90,000 households
representing a 3.5% response rate. This is one of the Council’s highest ever
response rates received to a public consultation and the largest ever online
response, using the Council’s website.

. Swapping of bins

The extended time period for a free bin swap has been set as the 1% June to
allow residents up to the end of May, the busiest month for use of green bins
based on previous years, to review the use of their bin following the transition
from weekly to fortnightly collections. Furthermore, there will be an extensive



Page 57

communication campaign to advise residents of their options and so enable
them to make informed decisions in advance of the change.

. Savings

A seasonal option was considered and referred to in the report (Section 4.2).
However, it did not meet the criteria of providing a significant and ongoing
saving.

With regards to contamination, we are already taking action to reduce this
through borough-wide resident communication, together with an extensive
targeted campaign against persistent offenders .

. Background research

Detailed modelling was undertaken and validated for both options that were
considered for consultation. This included all implementation costs and was
based on waste industry knowledge and by benchmarking with other councils
that have delivered comparable service changes.

As part of this process a high-level implementation programme was also
produced for both options that included the cost and delivery of, for example,
IT solutions that would be required to support the service change to a charged
service.

The Cabinet report in section 3.27 (Table 3) provides a comparison and the
net position of the two options. This comparison, for example, takes into
account a longer implementation period for a weekly charged service due to
the complexity of this option. However, once again, it should be noted that
87% of those who responded to the consultation rejected a charged for
service.

. Consultation document

The survey explicitly requested respondents provide suggestions or further
comments on what was proposed to which many responses were received.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59 Agenda Item 4

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORT NO. 142

- . ltem: 3
MEETING TITLE AND DATE: Agenda - Part: 1
Overview & Scrutiny Subject: The Development of Edmonton
Committee, Cemetery

10 November 2016

Wards: Bush Hill Park

REPORT OF: Key Decision No: 4234

Director of Finance, Resources
and Customer Services

Contact officers and telephone

Cabinet Member consulted: N/A

numbers:

Asmat Hussain, Assistant Director Legal and Governance
Tel: 020 8379 6438

Email: asmat.hussain@enfield.gov.uk

Claire Johnson, Scrutiny and Member Services Manager
Tel: 020 8379 4239

E mail: claire.johnson@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1  This report details a call-in submitted in relation to the following decision:
Cabinet Decision (19 October 2016): The Development of Edmonton
Cemetery

1.2  Details of this decision were included on Publication of Decision List No.
34/16-17 (Ref. 8/34/16-17 — issued on 21 October 2016).

1.3 In accordance with the Council’'s Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is asked to consider the decision that has been called-in for
review.

1.4  The members who have called-in this decision do not believe it falls outside of
the Council’s Policy Framework.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  That Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the called-in decision and




Page 60

either:

(@)

(b)
(©)

Refers the decision back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration setting out in writing the nature of its concerns. The
decision making body then has 14 working days in which to reconsider
the decision; or

Refer the matter to full Council; or
Confirm the original decision.

Once the Committee has considered the called-in decision and makes one of
the recommendations listed at (a), (b) or (c) above, the call-in process is
completed. A decision cannot be called in more than once.

If a decision is referred back to the decision making person or body; the
implementation of that decision shall be suspended until such time as the
decision making person or body reconsiders and either amends or confirms
the decision, but the outcome on the decision should be reached within 14
working days of the reference back. The Committee will subsequently be
informed of the outcome of any such decision.

3.1

BACKGROUND/ INTRODUCTION

Please refer to Section 3 of the Cabinet decision report.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None — Under the terms of the call-in procedure within the Council’s
Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny Committee is required to consider
any eligible decision called-in for review. The alternative options
available to Overview & Scrutiny Committee under the Council's
Constitution, when considering any call-in, have been detailed in
section 2 above.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
To comply with the call-in procedure within the Council’'s Constitution.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1 Financial Implications

The financial implications relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision report.



10.

11.

Page 61

6.2 Legal Implications

S 21, S 21A-21C Local Government Act 2000, s.19 Police and Justice
Act 2006 and regulations made under s.21E Local Government Act
2000 define the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny
committee. The functions of the committee include the ability to
consider, under the call-in process, decisions of Cabinet, Cabinet
Sub-Committees, individual Cabinet Members or of officers under
delegated authority.

Part 4, Section 18 of the Council’'s Constitution sets out the procedure
for call-in. Overview and Scrutiny Committee, having considered the
decision may: refer it back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration; refer to full Council or confirm the original decision.

The Constitution also sets out at section 18.2, decisions that are
exceptions to the call-in process.

6.3 Property Implications

There are no corporate property implications arising from the Cabinet
decision Report.

KEY RISKS

The key risks identified relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

The way in which the called-in decision impacts on the Council
priorities relating to fairness for all, growth and sustainability and strong
communities have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

The equalities impact implications relating to the called-in decision
have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

The performance management implications identified relating to the
called-in decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The health and safety implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.



Page 62

12. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

The public health implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

Background Papers
None



Page 63

APPENDIX 1

Call-In: Cabinet Decision: The Development of
Edmonton Cemetery



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

Page 193 Agenda ltem 13

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORTNO. 102

- : Item: 13
MEETING TITLE AND DATE: Agenda - Part: 1
Cabinet, 19" October 2016 Subject: The Development of Edmonton
‘Cemetery
REPORT OF: _ _
Director— Wards: Bush Hill Park

Regeneration & Environment Key Decision No: KD 4234

Contact officer and telephone number:

Jonathan Stephenson, Head of Cabinet Member consulted:
Commercial & Client Services Councillor D Anderson
jonathan.stephenson@enfield.gov.uk Councillor K Fonyonga
(02083 795249)

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The report outlines the Council’s proposal to extend Edmonton Cemetery,
onto part of the land owned by the Council adjacent to the A10 (currently
occupied by 14 tennis courts), to meet the growing demand for burial space
within the Edmonton area and for the Borough as a whole.

412  The Council also needs to adapt to meet the demands of the diverse
communities within Enfield by extending the range and choices of burial
options and locations.

1.3  Addressing these areas will also assist the Council in achieving a medium-
term sustainable income stream for the cemeteries service.

1.4  As aresult of the development, and to mitigate the proposed reduction in
tennis courts (from 14 down to 4) the report also proposes the approach,
supported by Sports England and the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA), subject
to planning approval and consultation, to invest £250K into tennis facilities
and the development of the sport across the borough.

2, RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Cabinet approve, Option 2, the redirection of capital expenditure, funded
through borrowing, of £1.8million to extend Edmonton Cemetery onto part of
the land owned by the Council adjacent to the A10. This will enable the
provision of 1718 new burial plots to assist in meeting the future burial
demand, subject to planning approval.

2o  That Cabinet approves, to assist the development, the reduction of 10 tennis
courts (of the 14 currently provided) on the proposed site and to ring-fence a

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



Page 66
Page 194

23

dedicated capital sum (also redirected from within the existing capital
programme) of £250K, as part of the overall £2.05Million budget, to assist the
development of tennis within the borough.

That Cabinet approves, subject to 2.1 and 2.2, and consultation with
stakeholders, to appropriate the land for planning purposes and to delegate to
the Director Regeneration & Environment (in consultation with the relevant
Cabinet Member) the decision to procure, negotiate and award contracts (in
accordance with the Council’'s Procurement Rules) for the works as
appropriate.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

BACKGROUND

The Council’'s cemetery service is facing a number of challenges over the next
few years with the priority of addressing the issue of growing demand and
limited supply for burial space within the borough, in particular within the
Edmonton area. The Council needs to adapt to meet the demands of its
diverse communities within Enfield by providing a range of burial options and
locations in the borough. Addressing these issues will assist the cemetery
service in securing a medium-term solution that is financially sustainable
moving forward.

Enfield Council operate five cemetery sites within the borough, and until
2012 when limited reuse burial provision was made available and in 2013 the
new burial chambers provision introduced at Edmonton Cemetery, the
cemeteries service has only been able to offer new Lawn Graves for burials at
Strayfield Road. However, capacity at Strayfield Road is estimated to be no
more than 10-15 years (short-term) at the current rates of burials.

An independent review was completed in 2015 with regards to Market
Analysis and Projected Demand within the borough. The review highlighted
the need for additional burial provision and an increased range of burial types,
to meet the demand of the communities within and outside Enfield, over the
next 20years (medium-term).

The conclusions with regards to projected demand referenced the most recent
work carried out by the Cemetery Research Group’s 2011-Audit of London
Burial Provision. This calculated the likely demand for burial space in London
using a combination of factors including mortality rates, cremation rates and
the preferences of different religious and ethnic groupings. This analysis
projected that Enfield would require a potential 13,540 burial spaces over the
20 year period from 2010/11.

The review investigated options (detailed in section 5) to meet the future
demand with the conclusion that the extension of Edmonton Cemetery, rather
than other options, such as the creation of a new cemetery, is the only feasible
and financially viable option available to the Council.

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Page 67
Page 195

Before arriving at the recommended option there were a range of other
options, as set out within section 5 of this report, explored around the exact
location of the proposed extension. This entailed a review of all adjacent land
being discounted, if not appropriate, through an assessment of suitability and
financial viability. For example the land adjacent to the cemetery at the
southern boundary, Firs Farm, was investigated originally as one of the
options and discounted due to the inability to develop the land owing to major
drainage issues. This has consequently been developed into a sustainable
urban drainage scheme that prohibits development further.

The other options available for the development of the Edmonton site are
limited with the only viable option, the recommended option, to investigate the
area currently used for 14 tennis courts. This site is underutilised,
predominately due to its location adjacent to the A10, and is also not seen by
the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) as a priority site for investment within the
borough.

With this in mind the Council decided to undertake an independent survey,
during May 2016, using the LTA’s assessment methodology, (a full summary
of results can be found within appendix 3) to understand the actual usage of
this site if used for development. The survey demonstrated that the site has
very little use and the reduction of 10 courts (from 14 to 4 courts) would have
no impact on the public's use. A similar survey was also undertaken during the
summer holidays (August) and the usage of the courts was also confirmed.

It is therefore also recommended that investment, as part of the overall
package of funding for tennis within this proposal, will be made available to
ensure the remaining 4 courts are provided to the required recognised (LTA)
recreational standards and will be maintained using the 2016/18 capital
improvements budget and future approved capital programmes. The proposed
development of the site will have no impact on the skateboard park adjacent to
the tennis courts.

Based on these conclusions this report proposes part of the land adjacent to
the Edmonton Cemetery (detailed in Appendix 1) has limited use for
recreational purposes and that it be appropriated for planning purposes
(subject to consultation) and developed, subject to planning approval, to
provide burial space for an additional 1,718 burial plots based on an
appropriate mix of earth graves, engineered vaulted graves and mausoleum
chambers, depending on demand.

The four main strategic reasons why the development of Edmonton Cemetery
should be considered and approved are:-

Meeting the Needs of the Community;
Improved Customer Choice;
Sustainable Revenue;

Enable investment in Tennis.

pON =

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Page 68
Page 196

Meeting the Needs of the Community

There is currently limited scope to meet the faith and cultural needs of all
sections of the community as Strayfield Road Cemetery is limited to lawn
grave burials (headstone only) and the grave reuse project at Edmonton
Cemetery does not allow for areas to be allocated to particular traditions, due
to lack of available space. This proposed development will enable Edmonton
Cemetery greater burial choice for residents. .

Improved Customer Choice

The Council has offered little choice other than a Lawn Grave burial service at
Strayfield Road for the last 10 years and residents must go elsewhere for
other options. The re-use of common grave space to offer traditional graves,
prefabricated vaulted graves and mausoleum chambers at Edmonton
Cemetery has proved popular and demonstrates that there is a demand for a
greater choice of burial options and locations. Currently the people of
Edmonton, and other residents east of the borough, have limited options when
it comes to burial provision and without this development, it is predicted, that
there will be no options available within two years.

Sustainable Revenue

A sustainable supply of new burial space is essential to meet burial demand in
the medium-term and ensure a continuous revenue stream into the service
and the Council to support the proposed and existing cemeteries provision.

Edmonton Cemetery, based on current demand, has only enough reusable
capacity for approximately 3 more years. With no further capacity available the
cemeteries budget, and the Council, will have a net loss of income (profit) of
£178K, if the new provision is not provided within this timeframe.

The success of the pilot grave reuse scheme and the provision of new burial
options at Edmonton have achieved a gross income of £1.35million over the
last 3 years, to meet increased income targets, through the sales of 192
traditional earth graves, all of the new 48 vaulted grave options and 31 of the
66 new mausoleum chambers.

This is a clear indication that there is demand for burials within Enfield
cemeteries if suitable provision can be made and a range of burial options are
offered. These new provisions proposed coupled with the expected demand
for burials enables the business case to be financially viable.

Enable Investment in Tennis across the borough

The proposed recommendation to develop the site will provide improvements
to be made to the remaining 4 courts that will enable residents an enhanced
experience when using the tennis courts. This will include exploring the
feasibility of enhancements to the court surfaces, the inclusion of a coaching
offer (to help those users keen on developing their tennis skills) and, similarly,
an outreach programme, as part of Enfield’s Move More campaign, to increase

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 69
Page 197

sports participation and encourage healthy lifestyles in the borough. This
opportunity, resulting from the development, will also provide investment to be
made, prior to the cemetery extension being completed and a condition of the
development taking place, to other sites within the borough and would not be
possible without the financial benefit from the development of the site. With
the investment gained from the development a detailed funded plan will be
provided to support the planning application required to extend the cemetery.
This plan will highlight investment that will be made on the remaining tennis
courts and some of the initial sites identified in Appendix 4.

PROPOSAL

The proposal is to develop part of the Council owned land adjacent to the A10
that currently occupies 10 of a total 14 underutilised public tennis courts
(independent usage survey attached in Appendix 3). This will require a total of
£2.05Miltion of funding to extend the Cemetery onto this land and will enable
the provision of 1718 new burial plots, with the potential to achieve £7.9Million
of gross income over a 20yr period, subject to planning approval. The
breakdown of the proposed burial types and the indicative quantities is
detailed within table 1.

Table 1-Edmonton Extension Burial Capacity

Total Numbers of Burials
Mausoleum 372
Traditional 1049
Vaults 297
Total 1718 (average of 86 per year)

The plan to invest £2.05Million into the cemetery extension that will provide
the Council with a medium-term sustainable source for burial plots and
income; to support the operational costs of running the Council’'s 5 cemetery
sites over this same period of time.

Financial Summary & Justification

The sales at Edmonton Cemetery, over the last 3 years, currently average 60
burials per year, and with the predicted burial forecasts and increased interest
in Mausoleum and Vault burials this will meet the required average number of
annual burials (86) that enable the business case to be viable over the 20yr
period.

Table 2 below shows the estimated investment and net income over the life of
the extension, based on an average 86 sales per year from year 3 for 20
years. As it can be seen in the table below income is estimated to exceed
total investment costs, over the life of the project, by £1.805m.

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



45

4.6

4.7

5.1

Page 70
Page 198

Table 2-Financial summary over the 20yr period

Total Capital Financing Cost (Borrowing) £2.911m
Total Net Income (New Burial Provision) -£4.716m
Net potential profit (-) £-1.805m

The full financial appraisal, with details of all assumptions made, can be
found within Appendix 1. ;

The Council acknowledges that the development of the site will reduce the
tennis court provision by 10 courts, but based on the current usage and
through negotiations with the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) and Sports
England a proposal has been reached to support a wider development of
tennis within the borough. This report seeks agreement to provide a dedicated
sum of £250K, as part of the requested £2.05M of capital, to invest into the
development of the remaining courts and other tennis sites in Enfield, and to
work in partnership with the LTA to deliver, over the next 15yrs, a sustainable
plan to assist the growth of tennis participation, within the borough.

The Council has identified an initial 8 sites (appendix 4), working with the LTA,
to invest the funding provided from this development. The recommendation is
firstly to prioritise, working with other stakeholders, the opportunity of gaining
additional match funding that can support a wider more extensive investment
into these sites and tennis, within the borough. This process will allow
engagement with other stakeholders to understand further the local demand
for tennis and ensure the investment provided is sustainable and supported
moving forward.

The final decision around the investment plan will also be informed following
the completion of the Councils Playing Pitch Strategy in late 2016. The final
proposals will be formalised to coincide with the proposed planning application
and consultation for the sites development as an extension to the cemetery.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
The options that have been considered are:-

e Option1- Develop all the land next to the A10, replacing all the
tennis courts (14) and the skate park.

e Option2- Develop part of the land next to the A10 (excluding the
skate park), removing 10 of the existing 14 tennis courts
and investing in the remaining 4 tennis courts and other
tennis facilities within the borough.

(Recommended option)

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



5.2

53

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

Page 71
Page 199

e Option 3- Develop other land adjacent to the cemetery
e Option4- Create a new cemetery at a different location
e Option 5- Do nothing

Option 1 has been considered as unviable, at this point in time, due to the
capital (£3.485million) and revenue costs against the return on investment.

There is a requirement for additional burial spaces within Enfield but extending
the cemetery over such a large area and the implications on other sports re-
provision (Skate Park) and maintenance costs of the site, prior to it being used
fully for burials is not efficient use of space and resource. This option may
need to be investigated at a later date if demand increases at a faster rate
than expected.

Option 2 is the recommended option as it is financially viable and has minimal
impact on the existing environment of the overall site and secures ongoing
recreational opportunities (tennis) and improvements, at the site, and across
the borough.

Option 3 has been considered but due to drainage issues and the sustainable
drainage scheme implemented at Firs Farm this option is not physically or
financially viable.

Option 4 was considered, though a new cemetery in isolation to any other
cemetery would require additional infrastructure, welfare and operational
(Chapel) facilities. The capital costs of these facilities and the additional
revenue costs to operate them makes this option not financially viable.

Option 5 of doing nothing will mean the priorities for Enfield with regards to
burials will not be met. The borough has only a few options available to meet
the current and expected demand for numbers and types of burials. With no
long-term options available to meet these demands the Council will find it
difficult to sustain the level of service provision provided with limited and
reducing revenue streams and choices available to its residents. This option
will also create also a £178K net pressure on the Council due to no income
being gained through burials at Edmonton.

Stakeholder Market Analysis and Engagement

Local funeral directors have been consulted as part of the market engagement
exercise of the review. The survey clearly indicates that the single most
important factor in choosing a preferred burial location was the family
connection to the local area or specific cemetery and there was strong support
for increasing the range of burial options to additional sites. Cost was the
second most important factor in the decision making process, but in only 3
cases was it considered to be equal or more important to the local/family
connection. The ability to pre-purchase graves was generally considered the
third most important factor, usually in the context of demand for pre-paid
funeral plans to include the guarantee of a reserved plot.

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 72
Page 200

In terms of choice, in most cases, lawn or traditional earth graves were
considered to be the most important offer for what is seen to be a relatively
conservative clientele.

Consultation

Subject to the recommended decision being taken consultation will be
undertaken, in addition to the communications highlighted within this report
with Sports England and the LTA, as part of the appropriation, planning and
implementation process advertisements and site notices will be displayed so
that all stakeholders holding or having an interest in the site and its future use
will have an opportunity to comment on the proposals.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The recommended option is option 2 this option retains the skateboard park
and 4 tennis courts on the site meeting the public’s demand and usage.

To summarise the reasons to recommend this option over other options is that
it will:-

¢ Meet the Needs of the Community-by extending the range of
burial options and locations;

e Improve Customer Choice- through increasing, much needed,
numbers (1781) of burial spaces and- providing choice of burial
options, 372 Mausoleum, 1049 Traditional Graves and 297 Vaults,
available to residents;

e Sustain Revenue-by providing additional income of a total of —
£1.805M, meeting and sustaining the annual revenue cost of the
service;

e Enable Investment in Tennis-through providing a dedicated
strategic fund for development of tennis facilities, on the site and
within the borough, which would not be available without the
development of the site.

Without this recommended development proposed the Council will not meet
the burial demands of the borough’s residents (numbers and choice), sustain
income required to maintain the service and provide investment into tennis
facilities within the borough.

The report is seeking recommendation by Cabinet to gain the necessary
approvals to commit the Council to the capital investment of £2.05million,
redirected from the existing capital programme, required to extend the
Edmonton Cemetery site and provide funding of £250K, for the development
of the remaining tennis courts and other tennis sites within the borough,
subject to the necessary planning approvals. This decision will increase the
capacity for burials within the borough, meet the future demand and increased
choice of burial options and provide important investment into tennis facilities
within the borough. The estimated completion of the proposed extension and

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



8.1

8.1.1

8.1.3

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

Page 73
Page 201

the investment provided into tennis would be, subject to planning, by the
autumn of 2018.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

Financial Implications

The proposed £2.05m required for the extension of Edmonton Cemetery can
be funded by redirecting existing capital resources and will be reflected in the
quarter 1 capital monitoring report. The borrowing costs, detailed in Table 2,
of circa £800k will be covered from the existing and new revenue income
streams and from the use of an earmarked reserve to support additional burial
provision at Edmonton Cemetery in the first two years.

The cost of borrowing and the additional revenue costs associated with the
increased grave space have been estimated over the next 20 years. Analysis
undertaken by a specialist consultant has forecasted the estimated income
levels from the increased grave space at minimum, median and maximum
levels. The average forecast of 86 burials per year is within the minimum to
median bracket.

Table 3- Capital Costs of New Provision

Capital Borrowing £2.050m
Total Interest £0.861m
Total Capital Financing £2.911m

The income generated from the additional burial provision will sustain the
current income levels whilst also supporting the achievement of the Medium
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) expectations for an additional £100k in 2017/18
and a further £100k in 2018/19.

Legal Implications

London Environment Directors’ Network (LEDNET) guidance highlights that
London Local Authorities must plan ahead regarding future burial capacity
within or adjacent to its existing cemeteries and reference is made to
developing a cemetery strategy to ensure the future delivery and funding of
the service.

The Council has power under section 214 of the Local Government Act 1972
(LGA 1972) to provide land for use as a cemetery. The Council’s existing site
alongside the A10 can be formally appropriated for that purpose in
accordance with section 122 of the LGA 1972. As part of this process it is
necessary to place an advertisement in a local paper circulating in the area

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



8.2.3

8.24

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

9.

Page 74
Page 202

for two consecutive weeks and to consider any representations received.
Given that this is designated as Metropolitan Open Land it will be necessary
to seek the views of Development Control early on in respect of the proposed
change of use. This is tracked as a risk with regards to the project although
informal indications are that there is a low risk of the change of use being
refused.

An up to date due diligence exercise of the legal title to the A10 Land would
also be necessary to ascertain the nature of subsisting restrictive covenants
that may affect the proposals and to discover who may now have the benefit
of such covenants and, if necessary, undertake negotiations with the
beneficiary to try and lift or vary them. This again is a risk to the delivery of
this project although in most instances the  risk of anyone attempting to
enforce covenants in this kind of scenario is fairly low:

The procurement of works and services must be undertaken in accordance
with the Council’'s Contract Procurement Rules and all contracts entered in to
must be in a form approved by the Assistant Director of Law and
Governance.

Property Implications

Various options for extending the burial area, including the provision of
vaulted graves and mausoleum chambers, have been explored in recent
years. This proposal creates a logical extension to the cemetery and
achieves a substantial increase in burial plots, whilst retaining the skate
board park, and four of the tennis courts, as well as a dedicated sum for the
improvement of tennis facilities generally.

In addition to the development, Property Services are tasked with the sale of
Cemetery House, which is self-contained and is intended to be separated off
from the rest of the cemetery site, with a new provision provided for the
cemetery services on the existing site as a replacement, following disposal.
The disposal does not include the former toilet block, adjacent to the car
park, which is also excluded from the extension proposals.

KEY RISKS
The major risks that face the successful delivery of the cemetery project are:-
e Capital infrastructure costs exceed estimates £2.05Million;
Mitigation
Provisional sums have been supplied to meet all known costs for this

project and a contingency provided.

¢ Income projections do not meet predictions and Demand for burial
space is lower than forecast;

Mitigation

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



Page 75
Page 203

Detailed, external verified, analytic data has been reviewed to enable
accurate projections to be made.

Income and sales targets will be monitored regularly.

The sites full development will be phased to enable the ability to sustain
annual costs, at a relative rate to burials and income raised.

¢ Not doing anything will create a £178K financial pressure in 2019/20
due to Edmonton cemetery being at capacity with no burial space
available and will also inhibit the ability to increase income to meet the
additional income target of £200k per annum from 17/18-18/19 within
the Councils MTFP. This option will also prohibit investment into tennis
facilities within the borough;

Mitigation
Agree to the extension of Edmonton Cemetery to meet the financial
pressure and provide additional income to support the ongoing
maintenance required to sustain the standard of the Council's
cemeteries.

10. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES
10.1 Fairness for All

The proposed extension to Edmonton Cemetery will provide additional burial
sites allocated to residents and non-residents through a fair and consistent
process. The proposal will also provide additional choice to meet the
increasing needs of the communities living within the borough or in its
surrounding areas. : ‘

10.2 Growth and Sustainability

The proposed development of Edmonton Cemetery will support the needs of
the growing communities and provide increased choice for burials within the
borough.

10.3 Strong Communities

The proposed scheme is focused on the future demands of residents within
the borough and allows for provision for non-residents with links to Enfield.
The proposal with its implementation can also adapt to future priorities of the
borough and its community’s needs.

11. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS
11.1  The development of Edmonton Cemetery aims to reduce any inequalities by

providing accessible and affordable burial provision and choice for
communities within or with links to the borough.

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



11.2

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

15.

15.1

15.2

Page 76
Page 204

Corporate advice has been sought in regard to equalities and an agreement
has been reached that an equalities impact assessment is neither relevant nor
proportionate for the approval of this report

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

Performance management arrangements to ascertain the effectiveness of the

development of Edmonton Cemetery will be agreed as part of the marketing
and performance plan to deliver the required outcomes of the project. This
plan will measure the success of meeting the strategic aims of the project
through Increased and Sustainable Revenue, Improved Customer Choice and
Meeting the Needs of the Community.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

There are no identifiable health and safety implications arising directly from
this proposal. There will be a requirement for Risk assessments, Method
statements and Safe Systems of Work to be gained prior to a contract
awarded for the development work to extend the cemetery and the contract
will be subject to periodic formal Health and Safety audits

HR IMPLICATIONS
There are no identifiable HR implications arising from this proposal.
PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

Safe burial of bodies is an essential service provided by the Council, the World
Health Organisation (WHO) has detailed the safe disposal of dead bodies for
both physical and mental health reasons. The ability to do this cost-effectively
will enable the service to continue for the foreseeable future. In addition extra
capacity will provide further borough resilience in the event of a major public
health incident.

The Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) has been consulted and are happy that
the current courts are not ideally situated and that investment in other parts of
the borough is more likely to improve uptake and thereby participation in
physical activity. Meeting physical activity guidelines is associated with a
reduction in long-term conditions of between 20 — 40% (depending on the
condition).  If further investment is also targeted towards community
development through supporting the social aspects of tennis a second
advantage of the investment elsewhere will be to increase community
resilience.

Background Papers

None.

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



Page 77

Page 205
Appendices
Appendix 1 - 20year financial appraisal and business case
Appendix 2- Outline plan of the proposed extension
Appendix 3 - Independent usage survey report (A10 Tennis Courts)
Appendix 4- LTA proposed investment opportunities
Appendix 5- LTA proposed Joint Strategic Partnership

RE15.170-Development of Edmonton Cemetery Cabinet



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



(1j02d) Bwpau) 33U ueisnod Sunsie
{nj044) UOIsIAQLY [BLING MBN WOy SWoou|

Bubueuly jeyden
(uosstaand {euing Bupsics wosg) Mwodu| jo 5507

Arewuwns (3

suodg
Arajawan

EOT- €0T- 07 €01 €01
S19

L1/9102

uoIsInGlg MaN 0 350 [eyde) (q
s2214d s,Aepo} e Wnuue J3d 000’8/ T3 4O 3W0dU) 0 550] 13U |21} Y
(000°T13) BuiBB|p Uo Buirs e pue (000'5¢F) 150d 3US 0 uonINP3I € Aq 3550 Alferiied 3q {I1M YoM ‘000°FTZ3 40 3Inssaid 398pNg e 33eald M sIyL

"1eaA 12d s|elng s3] 05 24 ||IM 213y} UAY) ‘I1S0| S UCIUOWIPT Ul UO|sIACId 33U0 ‘JeYy} uMOYS Sy 3auspadxa snolaald
*A1333Wa) uouaWp3 uj uolsirald 310w ou 3q |IM 33Y] ‘07/6TOZ WO 1333 Y1IM LS} ‘UOIUOWPJ 38 JIng S| AYJITR) MaU ou 4|

Suiyion oq (e




Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



AnRoBplagpe MM g

jrounosn _
a‘i13idN an,@va

N

punois) uofjesioay
19941S yoInyo

3q/wea] uoneuloju] Jassy Ag pasnpoid depy
SL0Z Jeqo10 /2 -:9eq

¥V -oz18 Jaded

3eag 0} JON -:3|eas

spiel4 buikeld
ulie sii4

£004NI0
YU JO Yonosog uopuoY Stupoacald BAD

Kaamg susvpsO O UISEIUDed 310 YR RUSIRL
ABUNS SUSURID) WL PONDOXISY B S B




Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83

Page 211

Enfield Tennis Courts

FIELD REPORT

. 1k
acumen® ENFIELD

fieldworklikeclockwork Council

Cassie Fulton June 9, 2016



Page 84

Page 212

Acuinen Fieldwork were commissioned by Enfield Council's, Regeneration & Environment
Departmient to conduct an independent review on how the Enfield Tennis Courts are used

prior to a proposed future development on the site.

The proposed development will see the tennis courts reduced from 14 courts to 4 to allow
for'the expansion of Edmonton Cemetery.

The Tennis Courts in question are located adjacent to the A1o carriageway and Edmonton

Cemetery in Enfield (see outlined area on Figure 1).

What follows is an outline of the Methodology used in the field to collect the data and a

summiary of the data findings.

Figure 1: Enfield Tennis Courts Location
(Image: Google Maps)

§

o

»
o

Y

e s
W,
oy

Dasevewary

T Latpmie chioed =

et

MareGu sy Srwts =tV B

e
g

Nérthprs o

™
By g

Conpgy "
w

PAGE 1



Page 85

Page 213

Methodology

The review of the tennis courts was done by conducting an observational study with the
data being recorded using pen and paper.

For ease of recording this information, a recording sheet was devised by Acumen so the
information could be recorded using a tick box method.

The information to be captured was as follows:

\

Date

Time

Location

Length of game

Weather conditions

Purpose of use (if anything other than Tennis)
Age

Gender

Type of Tennis

Whether it is a competitive game
Whether it is a coached game
Ethnicity of the players.

NN NN N YR N VR N

The court users weére also asked if they would mind being contacted via email for further
research purposes but this was not mandatory nor collected for anyone under the age of 16
without a parent present.

A copy of the record sheet used can be found in Appendix 1.

As this was an observational study only, the age, gender and ethnicity of the players was
judged by the observer, the players were not asked for this information. To ensure
consistency, the same observer was used on all shifts across the observational period.

Acumen sent an observer to the Tennis Courts over a 4 week period (Monday 9™ May -
Sunday 5" June) in order to record when the courts were being used and to gain a
'snapshot of who they were being used by and for what purpose.

* The division of the shift pattern was left entirely up to Acumen in order for Enfield
Council to remain independent of the study.

In order to capture a representative snap shot of the usage of the courts it was decided
that the shifts should cover daytime and evenings so two shift timeslots were devised;
09.00am -~ 03:00pm and 03:00pm - 0g:oopm.

PAGE 2



Page 86

Page 214

Acumen allocated the shifts randomly across the four weeks ensuring a spread of days
visited by allocating two visits for each day of the week (so there were 2 visits conducted
on a Monday, 2 on a Tuesday etc.).

Acumen also visited the site during half term week (w/c 30™ May) as this presented a good
opportunity to collect some data on how the courts are used on none standard days (e.g.
School holidays).

A copy of the schedule of when observers were present at the courts can be found in
Appendix 2.

For any time periods that the courts were not in use, the observer was instructed to record
the date, time and weather conditions hourly so that usage can be fully tracked for the
times the courts were being observed.

Findings
Across the entire 4 week period, 18 games of tennis were observed being played.

A total of 84 hours were spent observing the courts and of this 29.25 hours of tennis was
observed.

There was one incidence of the courts being used for something other than tennis, this
was a member of the public who spent 1 hour walking his dog.

The observations also took place under a variety of weather conditions. It was noted that
no tennis games were played when it was raining.

It was never observed that there were more than 3 games being played at any one time.

The presence of the observer did catch the interest of some of those using the courts.
Some feedback from the observer is that most of those using the courts liked them and
were pleased with their current condition.

PAGE 3



Page 87

Page 215

¥ u2avid]
£ YA
T HIAVId
T UIAVTY
& [ & & & /8 £ -
& SE : = & B o o & W A &
% 5 Jod) 2 o F & = s fes/2s/ F n% s L s [ = t i &> 2
o Py o o F- 3 \ § 3 ¥ . 2
& Ss)s o) fS)E) T EE[FE/S ) F /& I Y ETETEVETEVETVEVA
LA & * <) ~ L
| | ALDINHLI | IEEEEEE SINLLLIINOD SINNZL0 3daL)  wEoMID || EEL | |
SN ¥ SUH
g oNUw
Q2AvId 3L ARV (=10 aHON INON
Bl yns, prodas asodd pagsaif soy 1iys 21 Bulo i K G3IHSING JALL = 5% e H__..._.GL et
LIS ApDUtY,, pIo3el 3508 parims soy ofiys aiafeq Bl i QILBYLS FNIL Anvan) s | esn) s AGNom o WHHLYI
. “ON HI1YWN
“ON L8| — uhj‘ _ zQEuo..—
¥ 1AV
€ MV
Zu3Avd
THIAV
hﬂ % .& & .rﬂo 3 % Ny
& £ fS FhF = RS > £ ? - o J& /& & /&
g S PEVIYErY /I VLT & & b : , & fa
£ ALV TETETAVAY ST LT Ve VEIETEVENEVE VLYV A
Ly o = Ve & /
| | ALINHLE § (oIV0D EINLLILIANOD [SINNZL 30 3dAL] | | e | |
{SWiv B S|
B 3 o
—— AV @an 1HoN INON
_—
»Budnig gus. pro33: asoard pagsmu soy 1fiys sa3Jo Bunlo [ QIHSINK I = e ot u..:._.c._ i
2PILIDIS APDRULY, PI0323 250916 PRLIDLS 50Y Biys 2s0faq ".._..._,_&&._— : QALNYIS Il anva) wiva | e » Fonos s EHL
ON HILYW




Page 88

Page 216

13Dvd

wd6

— wud¢
aun( ,__m.
wd€g

— ure6b

Aepy 6T

Ul
%-N—Z _:_.N.N

Kepy St

Yyl
ung

aun{ ¢

P

e Wt

wd6

- wd¢

Aejq (wWOF

wd€

— wes6

AeAl ,__m._
L]

aunf <

pu

AeA 19T
urdé6

- wdg
Ae A 10!

wd€
- wmeb

sany g,

Aep

Aepy 81

wd€

- wre6

AeA e
PoM

wrd6

— wd€
Ae ,:OM
wdg
—we6

Aen _:mm

AeA 39!

AeAl ,:m
Uo\

oco/m
(anra g,

JI®H)
L& CEYN

€co/m
pa
1 EEYVY

,_ba /M
TIDM

1[99 M




Page 89
Page 217

|smasav 1|

3led umoj

(spnao y) pi2yul Jo
ybneoiog
LopUQCT]

roum dwis v pedey | eenjotuse

Yed souly



|sassv

yied sjuenung

Page 90
Page 218

sMed JIiH ysng

pPisyu3d Jo
— bnouo S WITE | IO
UOpUOT 1=

T Ned Aueqy



Page 91

APPENDIX 2

Call-in request form submitted by 8 Members of
the Council



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93

CALL-IN OF DECISION

(please ensure you complete all sections fully)

Please return the completed original signed copy to:
James Kinsella, Democratic Services Team, 3" Floor, Civic Centre

TITLE OF QECISION:/Thf (= e et
Ce= e v

DECISION OF: — — I et

DATE OF DECISION LIST PUBLICATION: <D (- 2R« 2o\l

LISTNO{ & | 4| ie—1)

(* N.B. Remember you must call-in a decision and notify Democratic Services Team

within 5 working days of its publication). :

A decision can be called in if it is a corporate or portfolio decision made by either
Cabinet or one of its sub-committees, or a key decision made by an officer with
delegated authority from the Executive.

(a) COUNCILLORS CALLING-IN (The Council’s constitution requires seven
signatures or more from Councillors to call a decision in).

(1) Signature: ..\ L=k Print Name:.- .. . \-E 250, .
(2) Signature:. /Q/ﬁ/ﬁéuw Print Name:. /2. /1. A€ CE. ...
(3) Signatufer—.\ ¢ Lx.... Print Name: (4 AR vnlce.
(4) Signature:... ﬂ/\ . ’} A print Name:, M LI
(5) Signature:./. f//‘""’//’ ....... Print Name:. M. DIAE ...

Print Name:..Ef.....é.,ﬁga‘f. R s S S

Print Name: ©& &L TG LT

Print Name'*é' '&\/“ N 0“‘.25:.

(b) SCRUTINY PANEL RESOLUTION (copy of minute detailing formal
resolution to request call-in to be attached).

NAME OF PANEL:

DATE OF PANEL:

T™NOTNNT A £__AN



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95

APPENDIX 3

Reasons for Call-in by Councillor calling in the
decision

&

Briefing Note in response to called in decision
TO FOLLOW



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97

DST - Ref No:

a. SCRUTINY PANEL RESOLUTION (copy of minute detailing formal
resolution to request call-in to be attached).

NAME OF PANEL: OV /0 {&/\J\m‘ oo

DATE OF PANEL:

(1) Reason why decision is being called in:

Developm n

Borrowing. This project will have to be funded through the redirection of capital expenditure. The
Council’s borrowing is already at unprecedented levels.

General Fund. The Council is predicting a £7.9 million overspend for 16/17 whilst this decision
includes capital investment the interest charges are revenue creating an additional pressure.

Tennis Courts. The development of Edmonton Cemetery will mean the reduction of 10 tennis
courts.

Mitigation funding. The £250,000 investment into tennis courts does not change the fact that 10
tennis courts will be got rid of. £250,000 is not a vast sum in terms of council funding it will not
create show courts in our parks.

Current state of A10 tennis courts. The arguments for the removal of the tennis courts include
the fact that the current ones are not in the best of condition, however that is down to the
Environment Department so it is Enfield Council’s own fault. It is extraordinary that the other tennis
courts in the borough are not in a bad condition but these ones have been left so they are not of the
same standard.

Improved choice: The department knew that by offering more burial options capacity would run
out probably sooner. I understand that a lot of the custom comes from outside of the borough
rather than from existing residents.

Decision of convenience: The expansion on to the tennis courts is just a decision of convenience
because they are located next to the cemetery.

Not a decision for the long term, The expansion of Edmonton Cemetery is a short term option;
Enfield needs to find appropriate capacity for the next 30 years.

Only option. This decision does not explore in detail why using an existing site in Enfield is so
uneconomical nor buying land outside of the borough.

Demand. What if demand changes and people’s choices differ due to changing demographics and
cheaper options become available. Brexit may make difference as well to this.

Public Health. OSC has recently heard how bad our obesity levels are in the borough and our
Public Health strategy talks about promoting exercise and better lifestyle cholces yet we are
removing tennis courts where people can exercise. We have not also promoted use of our facilities
in particular these tennis courts so that more people would be attracted to play there.

‘Booking. The draft agreement between the LTA and Enfield Council talks about measuring activity
through bookings. At present there is no need to book at any of our tennis courts in the borough
making them reasonably available.

TS TIPPBINIEYUZ



Page 98

DST - Ref No:

Location. The decision states thdt one of the reasons that the tennis courts are not used more

is their location by.the A10. This did not of course matter to Power League just a few minutes up
the road. The Environment Department did not feel the same way when recently it had a
planning application granted for an artificial pitch located at Enfield Playing Fields adjacent to the
A10.

Consultation. There was not consultation with residents regarding the removal of 10 tennis
courts. :

' Measuring usage exercise. This time period was selectively chosen and it conveniently missed

the busiest time in the year when the tennis courts are used to capacity.

Outline of proposed alternative action:
The decision to be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration of the available options in view
of the concerns raised under the call-in relating to the funding, level of mitigation action
proposed given the loss of facilities, lack of detail on alternative options and justification for the
decision in relation to the location of the existing facility and public hea|t!1 implications.

Do you believe the decision is outside the policy framework?
No '

(4) If Yes, give reasons:

FOR S. & O. USE ONLY:

Checked by Praper Officer for validation -
Name of Proper Offigéx Date: él/c o /’2,0 (S

w

ﬁm\d/ Hlessan

DST/PPB/May02



Page 99

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
10" November 2016

RESPONSE TO
REASONS FOR CALL IN
Part 1

Relating to the Following Decision:

Decision: The Development of Edmonton Cemetery

Decision Date: 19™ October 2016

Decision of: Cabinet

Key Decision No: KD4234

1.

introduction

At its meeting of the 19™ October the Council’s Cabinet made the decision to
extend Edmonton Cemetery, onto part of the land owned by the Council
adjacent to the A10, which is currently occupied by 10 of the existing 14
tennis courts.

The main purpose being to extend the range and choice of burial options and
locations within the Borough in order to meet the growing demand for burial
space from an ever more diverse community

The proposals will assist the Council in achieving a medium-term sustainable
income stream for the cemeteries service.

In addition, and as a result of the development, in order to mitigate the
proposed reduction in tennis courts it is intended to invest £250k into existing
tennis facilities elsewhere and support the development of the sport across
the borough. This is a proposal supported by Sports England and the Lawn
Tennis Association (LTA).



Page 100

Reasons for Call In
The reasons why the decision was called in are as follows: -

1. Borrowing. This project will have to be funded from the redirection of capital
expenditure. The Council’s borrowing is already at unprecedented levels

2. General Fund. The Council is predicting a £7.9million overspend for 16/17
whilst this decision includes capital investment the interest charges are
revenue creating additional pressure.

3. Tennis Courts. The development of Edmonton Cemetery will mean the
reduction of 10 tennis courts.

4. Mitigation funding. The £250,000 investment into tennis courts does not
change the fact that 10 tennis courts will be got rid of. £250,000 is not a vast
sum in terms of council funding it will not create show courts in our parks.

5. Current state of A10 tennis courts. The arguments for removal of the tennis
courts include the fact the current ones are not in the best of conditions,
however that is down to the Environment Department so it is Enfield Council’s
own fault. It is extraordinary that the other tennis courts in the borough are not
in a bad condition but these ones have been left so they are not of the same
standard.

6. Improved choice: The department knew that by offering more burial options
capacity would run out probably sooner. | understand that a lot of custom
comes from outside of the borough rather than from existing residents.

7. Decision of convenience: The expansion on the tennis courts is just a
decision of convenience because they are located next to the cemetery.

8. Not a decision for the long term. The expansion of Edmonton Cemetery is a
short term option; Enfield needs to find appropriate capacity for the next
30years.

9. Only option. This decision does not explore in detail why using an existing
site in Enfield is so uneconomical nor buying land outside the borough.

10.Demand. What if demand changes and people’s choices differ due to
changing demographics and cheaper options become available. Brexit may
make a difference as well to this.

11.Public Health. OSC has recently heard how bad our obesity levels are in the
borough and our Public Health strategy talks about promoting exercise and
better lifestyle choices yet we are removing tennis courts where people can
exercise. We have not also promoted use of our facilities in particular these
tennis courts so that more people would be attracted to play there.

12.Booking. The draft agreement between the LTA and Enfield Council talks
about bookings. At present there is no need to book at any of our tennis
courts in the borough making them reasonably available.

13.Location. The decision states that one of the reasons that the tennis courts
are not used more is their location by the A10. This did not of course matter to
Power League just a few minutes up the road. The Environment Department



Page 101

did not feel the same way recently it had a planning application granted for an
artificial pitch located at Enfield Playing Fields adjacent to the A10.
14.Consultation. There was not consultation with residents regarding the
removal of the 10 tennis courts.
15.Measuring usage exercise. This time period was selectively chosen and it
conveniently missed the busiest time in the year when the tennis courts are
used to capacity.

Response to Reasons for Call In

1. Borrowing.

The capital investment is not new or additional borrowing and is being
redirected from existing approved resources.

2. General Fund.

The interests payments have been included in the financial model and will be
covered from the income generated from the additional burial capacity and
therefore will not create any additional pressure on the revenue budget.

3. Tennis Courts.

The tennis courts in question are underused in a poor location. The proposals
will seek to invest £250k into more effective facilities elsewhere and support
the development of the sport across the borough. The approach is fully
supported by the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) and Sports England.

4. Mitigation funding.

This funding has been agreed in partnership with the LTA and Sports
England. Further match funding will also be explored to maximise this
opportunity.

5. Current state of A10 tennis courts.

In 2013 and 2015 the Council agreed a proactive capital programme, of just
under £4m, that has provided resources to assist priority repairs and
maintenance across all parks and open spaces. Prior to this there was no
capital programme in place.

The tennis courts on the A10 site are clearly underutilised but sufficient courts
have always been provided and maintained to meet the demand and usage of
the site.



Page 102

Independent surveying during May and August 2016, which included school
holidays, has demonstrated that only 4 courts are actively used on the A10
site. Furthermore, the Lawn Tennis Association share our view that the site is
inadequate and inappropriate for priority investment.

6. Improved choice:

Proportions of earth-grave burials for residents to non-residents have
remained generally constant over the last 5 years at around 90% residents to
10% non-residents. New burial choices such as Mausoleums and Burial
Chambers have to date been sold at a ratio of 98% residents and 2% non-
residents.

7. Decision of convenience:

The location was determined after a thorough review of the options across the
Borough, see Section 5 of the Cabinet Report. The creation of an extension
and the provision of 1,718 new burial plots will allow people, mainly residents,
with an association with the area the opportunity to be buried in the Borough
at the same location as their relatives, rather than outside the Borough.

8. Not a decision for the long term.

This decision will assist in providing provision for burials within the borough
over the next 20 plus years. The Council will also explore and develop other
opportunities in order to meet the long-term burial demands predicted for
Enfield.

9. Only option.

Other options were explored. Indeed, as noted in Section 5, paragraph 5.6 of
the Cabinet report, the option of creating a new cemetery at a different
location was rejected due to the additional infrastructure costs which would be
required.

10.Demand.

Any long-term strategy involves planning for a number of possible scenarios.
Independent advice was sought concerning best and worst case scenarios for
sales and this confirmed that even on a worst-case scenario, the business
case for the extension was viable. The burial spaces can also be created and
sold in phases which will make it possible to adjust supply to meet demand.



Page 103

11.Public Health.

The reduction of 10 courts down to 4 courts will have no adverse impact on
public health as the demand and usage is met by the 4 remaining courts.

12.Booking.

The LTA agreement mentions bookings as this is the LTA approach to gaining
data to understand the use of tennis courts generally moving forward. The
Council have not agreed this booking approach for tennis within the borough.

13.Location.

The decision to place a 3G pitch on Enfield Playing Fields was following a
recommendation from the FA, due to a deficiency in all-weather pitches within
the borough. With the A10 tennis courts, the Lawn Tennis association, which
is the national governing body for tennis support the proposals made within
the Cabinet report to improve the 4 remaining courts and reinvest the £250Kk in
order to develop and improve other sites within the borough.

14.Consultation.
Residents have not been part of a consultation on the decision to develop
Edmonton cemetery, but will be engaged with the development process and
will also have the chance to provide representations or comments at the
planning application stage.

15.Measuring usage exercise.

The survey was undertaken during May and August and included school
holiday periods.



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

Page 105 Agenda Item 5

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORT NO. 144

Agenda — Parts 1&2 |ltem: 5

Overview & Scrutiny Subject: Refurbishment & Reprovision Work
Committee, of Enfield Highway Library Building

10 November 2016 Wards: Al

REPORT OF: Key Decision No: 4335

Director of Finance, Resources
and Customer Services

Contact officers and telephone

Cabinet Member consulted: N/A

numbers:

Asmat Hussain, Assistant Director Legal and Governance
Tel: 020 8379 6438

Email: asmat.hussain@enfield.gov.uk

Claire Johnson, Scrutiny and Member Services Manager
Tel: 020 8379 4239

E mail: claire.johnson@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1  This report details a call-in submitted in relation to the following decision:
Cabinet Decision (19 October 2016): Refurbishment & Reprovision Work
of Enfield Highway Library Building

1.2 Details of this decision were included on Publication of Decision List No.
34/16-17 (Ref. 12/34/16-17 — issued on 21 October 2016).

1.3 In accordance with the Council’'s Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is asked to consider the decision that has been called-in for
review.

1.4  The members who have called-in this decision do not believe it falls outside of
the Council’s Policy Framework.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  That Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the called-in decision and




Page 106

either:

(@)

(b)
(©)

Refers the decision back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration setting out in writing the nature of its concerns. The
decision making body then has 14 working days in which to reconsider
the decision; or

Refer the matter to full Council; or
Confirm the original decision.

Once the Committee has considered the called-in decision and makes one of
the recommendations listed at (a), (b) or (c) above, the call-in process is
completed. A decision cannot be called in more than once.

If a decision is referred back to the decision making person or body; the
implementation of that decision shall be suspended until such time as the
decision making person or body reconsiders and either amends or confirms
the decision, but the outcome on the decision should be reached within 14
working days of the reference back. The Committee will subsequently be
informed of the outcome of any such decision.

3.1

BACKGROUND/ INTRODUCTION

Please refer to Section 3 of the Cabinet decision report.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None — Under the terms of the call-in procedure within the Council’s
Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny Committee is required to consider
any eligible decision called-in for review. The alternative options
available to Overview & Scrutiny Committee under the Council's
Constitution, when considering any call-in, have been detailed in
section 2 above.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

To comply with the call-in procedure within the Council’'s Constitution.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1

Financial Implications

The financial implications relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision report.




10.

11.

Page 107

6.2 Legal Implications

S 21, S 21A-21C Local Government Act 2000, s.19 Police and Justice
Act 2006 and regulations made under s.21E Local Government Act
2000 define the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny
committee. The functions of the committee include the ability to
consider, under the call-in process, decisions of Cabinet, Cabinet
Sub-Committees, individual Cabinet Members or of officers under
delegated authority.

Part 4, Section 18 of the Council’'s Constitution sets out the procedure
for call-in. Overview and Scrutiny Committee, having considered the
decision may: refer it back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration; refer to full Council or confirm the original decision.

The Constitution also sets out at section 18.2, decisions that are
exceptions to the call-in process.

6.3 Property Implications

There are no corporate property implications arising from the Cabinet
decision Report.

KEY RISKS

The key risks identified relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

The way in which the called-in decision impacts on the Council
priorities relating to fairness for all, growth and sustainability and strong
communities have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

The equalities impact implications relating to the called-in decision
have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

The performance management implications identified relating to the
called-in decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The health and safety implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.



Page 108

12. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

The public health implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

Background Papers
None



Page 109

APPENDIX 1

Call-In: Cabinet Decision: Refurbishment &
Reprovision Work of Enfield Highway Library
Building.



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

Page 111

Page 311 Agenda Item 17

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORTNO. 110

Agenda — Part: 1 ltem: 17

Cabinet - Subject: Refurbishment and Reprovision

19" October 2016 work of Enfield Highway Library building
Wards: All

REPORT OF: Key Decision No: KD 4335

Director of Housing,
Health & Adult Social
Services

Director of Finance,
Resources & Customer
Services

Cabinet Members consulted:
Clir Ayfer Orhan
Education, Children’s Services & Protection

Clir Krystle Fonyonga
Community Safety & Public Health

Contact officer and telephone number:

Christine Williams: 020 8379 5559 Email; christine.williams@enfield.gov.uk
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 In accord with the Councils Library Strategy 2015-18, a procurement process

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

has been completed for the renovation of the Enfield Highway Community
Library building to create (i) a modified library service consistent with the
Library Strategy, (ii) the Hub clinic for Enfield Integrated Sexual Health
Community Services [Cabinet Report No. 30] for which previous Cabinet
decisions have been made and (iii) the Young Person’s Drug & Alcohol

" Treatment Service, which is currently being delivered from Folkestone Road.

This innovative project will bring these community based services into a
community hub, operating from a refurbished landmark site.

The Tendering Procedure was undertaken in accordance with the principles of:
‘JCT Practice Note 6 (Series 2) Main Contract Tendering Arithmetical errors;
Alternative 1 is to apply’ and was managed by the Council’s Procurement and
Commissioning Hub.

The financial envelope for this programme is fixed and will be covered by
Capital allocations supported by revenue from the Public Health Grant.

The contract is for approximately eight (8) weeks with the handover to service
providers over an agreed phased timeline:

- Phase 1: Library Service (ground floor)

- Phase 2: Integrated Sexual Health Hub Clinic (ground floor)

- Phase 3: Young Person’s Drug & Alcohol Treatment Service (first floor)




Page 112
Page 312

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
That Cabinet:

2.1 note the tender process has adhered to Corporate Procurement Procedures,
EU Procurement Regulations; and

2.2  approve the award of the contract to the preferred Bidder as detailed in Part 2
of this Report.

2.3 approve the re-directing of resources and addition to the existing capital
programme to be met from newborrowing noting the repayments of
principle and interest will be met from the existing Public Health budgets
over 7 years (as detailed in the Part 2 report).

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 Library Services:

3.1.1 The Library Development Strategy (2015 — 2018) reflects the
Council's vision for libraries and places them at the heart of local
communities offering in particular:

o A digital network offering Wi-Fi and improved computer facilities
along with a range of digita‘I inclusion activities

o Greater involvement by local communities in the management of
library services through a variety of different and innovative
models and partnerships

o Facilitated access to government services such as education,
welfare reform, economic growth and well being

3.1.2 Enfield Council has considered the Department for Culture,
Media and Sport (DCMS) Independent Library Report for England
(2014), which states that ‘local authorities should continue to have the
statutory duty to provide a comprehensive and efficient service for all
persons desiring to make use thereof taking into account local needs
and within available resources.

3.1.3 Enfield is one of the few London councils to have made the
commitment to maintain a full library service in these tough economic
times and designed a strategy that will continue to deliver this service
while addressing financial constraints through innovation and
partnership working.




3.2

3.3

Page 113
Page 313

3.1.4 With it community library status, Enfield Highway Library will
continue on, sharing the facility with other services to meet the needs
of the community.

This report sets out the plan to remodel! the building to become a muilti-
service site, working with other Council and partner services to provide
a cluster of services aimed at the youth and young adult communities.

Integrated Sexual Health Services:
3.2.1 Cabinet Report No. 30 — Award of Contract for Enfield Integrated
Sexual Health Community Services — presented a multi-site service
provision to: ,

e address the demands of the population

e ensure access across the Borough

e reduce the out-of-borough spend on GUM

3.2.2 The Cabinet Report outlined the multi-site service design offering
a Hub and Spoke framework which included the following identified
sites and locations for sexual health services:
e Enfield Highway (Hub clinic)
e Enfield Town (Spoke clinic)
¢ North Middlesex University Hospital Trust site (part-time
" Spoke clinic)
¢ Bowes/Palmers Green/Arnos Grove area (part-time
Spoke clinic)
e QOutreach mobile clinic

3.2.3 The Hub clinic had been temporarily based at Evergreen Surgery
in Edmonton from the commencement of the new contract (November
2015) to July 2016 to address service continuity and contain the out-of-
borough activity for GUM. The licence agreement to occupy the
Evergreen Surgery building expired 31 July 2016 with no possibility of
extension. The cost of renting this facility was financially prohibitive, as
detailed in Part 2 of this report.

3.2.4 The temporary service delivery programme is to redirect service
users to the Town Clinic (Burleigh Way) with some appointments being
redirected to the Alexander Pringle HIV Clinic on the North Middlesex
University Hospital site.

This is an unsustainable solution as access to the service has been
reduced by 35% with appointment only service available one day per
week in the eastern part of the Borough

Integrated Sexual Health Services is a mandated service.
Young Person’s Drug & Alcohol Treatment Service:

3.3.1 This is a service for young people identified as misusing drugs
or alcohol. The target group is Enfield's young people at risk (i.e. not in



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Page 114
Page 314

education, employment or training - NEET) and other community
members.

This service also delivers psychosocial support and other health
improvement services for young people affected by parental and/or
other family members’ substance misuse.

3.3.2 It is currently delivered from 29 Folkestone Road, London N18
2ER, which is a Council property included on the 2016/17 Capital
Disposal Programme to support Enfield’s 2017 efficiency targets.

The property is not fit for purpose for seeing young people due to the
limitations of its size and poor location. It was therefore primarily
utilised for office purposes and offered a limited site to deliver a young
people’s substance misuse service.

3.3.3 The inclusion of the young people’s substance misuse service at
Enfield Highway Library affords excellent access to young people due
to its anonymity and proximity to the largest college, whom remain the
second largest young-people’s substance misuse referral services, and
other educational establishments in the Borough as well as being co-
located with a library and sexual health service.

The delivery of Drug and Alcohol Services has strategic relevance as
part of the Government’s National Drug and Alcohol strategies”.

Enfield Highway Library was identified as the site for the Integrated
Sexual Health Hub Clinic and Young Person’s Drug & Alcohol
Treatment Service as it is located in the middle of the highly populated
eastern part of the Borough, close to a large education college that

'serves Enfield students and easily accessible via public transport and

being a stand-alone building, the opening hours will not affect
residents. It is also recognised as neutral territory with regards to gang
culture in Enfield.

The initial plan, in December 2015, to commence the tender
programme for the renovation works to be carried out at the site in time
for an April 2016 completion was not possible due to a number of
accommodation moves which needed to be resolved by the Council
and the need to establish that the building could be converted to clinical
use which included undertaking detailed asbestos and electrical
surveys. :

The renovation work must now move to a swift completion to enable
effective service delivery to Enfield’s residents.

The Tender Process
3.7.1 The priorities for this tender are :



Page 115
Page 315

(i Effective time management — with the re-opening of the
Library service and Integrated Sexual Health clinic to take place
as close to late summer 2016 as possible.

(ii)

Ensuring that the strict NHS governance for clinical and

infection control for the clinic was adhered to as the clinic would
not open without passing inspection from Clinical Quality
Commission (CQC).

3.7.2 Procurement timeline:

November 2015

Approval received from the Strategic Procurement
Board

Dec 2015
—Jan 2016

Full asbestos and electrical surveys carried out on the
building by CMCT to ensure that it was fit for purpose.

Feb -
2016

April

CMCT drafts:

Floor plans

Preliminaries

Service specification

Schedule of Works

Pricing document

Occupation of building reviewed

1% floor renovations (DAAT service) removed from
tender

CMCT amend documents to accommodate the ground
floor refurbishment only, due to the urgency of required
location for the Library and Integrated Sexual Health
Clinical Hub services

Published:

22" April 2016

Corporate Maintenance & Construction Team
(CMCT) leading on tender process:

Tender goes live on a fixed price basis

Five (5) Tenderers were selected from Constructionline
as per PCR Rules and procedures

Submission
Return:

6™ May 2016 @
12pm noon

Three (3) completed submissions received
One (1) Incomplete submission, therefore declined

One (1) submission not received

Stakeholders meeting to discuss Report

Procurement process reviewed by Corporate
Procurement Hub who highlighted potential anomalies
with regards to conversations that took place on LTP
between CMCT and one of the Bidders




Page 116
Page 316

6th _ 13“‘!

June 2016 CPR and EU procurement rules state that all

communications should be sent publicly on LTP
ensuring that all Bidders are aware and none are given
any advantage.

The review also highlighted that the criteria did not
include Quality, which was a requirement due to the
clinic being subject to Care Quality Commission (CQC)
inspection.

Subject to the review carried out, it was agreed that the
clarification questions needed to be circulated to all
Bidders publicly and a Quality criteria was to be added.

As there would be a delay in the process, it was
agreed to include the 1% floor renovations for the
Young Person’s DAAT service in the process

In line with the Council's new way of working,
Corporate Procurement Hub was given the lead on

20" - 27" completing the process and CMCT would provide the
Juhe 2016 expertise.

CMCT amended all documents to include the
renovations to the 1% floor, which included the
installation of a lift to ensure the building is DDA
compliant.

Bidders informed that an Addendum will be going live
on London Tenders Portal (LTP) on the 3™ July

Note: Option to choose Addendum to Invitation To- Quote (ITQ) option
based on:

There were no changes to the Terms & Conditions

There was no change to the procedure

There was no change to the pricing structure

Adding the Quality criteria for evaluation previously omitted was
not changing the process or T&Cs:

e Price 60%

e Quality 40%

Minor changes to the Specification was not changing the process
or T&Cs

It was concluded that this was not a re- tender

'This option was discussed with and agreed by all the bidders.

Published Corporate Procurement Hub leading on tender

process:




Page 117
Page 317

Addendum to ITQ with Quality criteria + clarification

3" July 2016 questions + changes to specification and additional
works on LTP sent to the four (4) Bidders that had
submitted and returned their tenders.

Submission Two Submissions received

Return:

11" July 2016 @
12am midnight

Two Submission not received both companies
sighting work commitments as the explanation

Evaluation panel meet to discuss individual scoring

13" July 2016
Panel agree that further clarifications are required in
regard to specific clinical and mechanical items

Published Clinical clarifications published and confirmation of

22" July 2016 fixed price requested

29™ July 2016 Clinical submissions scored
Submissions reviewed with CMCT, who will be project
managing the work.

3" August 2016 | Agreed to contact Bidders requesting them to submit
documentation to evidence some quotes for final
clarification plus One (1) Bidder needed to confirm
fixed price

Published: Evidence of prices quoted in submission and

12™ August 2016 | confirmation of Fixed price requested

Submission Both companies submitted a response

Return:

18" August 2016
@ 4pm

o Both reported issue with LTP, which resulted in
one (1) Submission not received until 4.48pm

o Advised by Corporate Procurement Hub to
accept late submission due to issue with LTP
experienced by both Bidders

Note: The Tender was based on-JCT Minor Works Building Contract with
Contractor’s Design (MWD) 2001 Edition

3.7.3 Further details in Part 2

4, ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

41

There was no alternative to tendering externally as Enfield

Council was unable to directly provide a building renovation
service that is NHS compliant in-house

42 Services:

4.2.1 The Council is committed to providing a first rate Library
Service and has designed an innovative and effective way to




Page 118
Page 318

retain more libraries than any other London borough by working
in partnership with reputable and credible partners to bring vital
community services that people rely on into library buildings
while retaining libraries in all of our neighbourhoods.

Following the restructure of the Borough'’s library service Enfield
Council designed a Flagship and Community infrastructure.

Enfield Highway Library will reopen as a community library
aimed at the youth and young adult community.

The Council will continue to run these community libraries and
library card holders will be able to use their account to access a
wide range of library services. However the community library
structure requires the sharing of the premises with other services
and organisations to bring in income, share costs and provide
added benefits to the local community.

4.2.2 It was not possible for the Sexual Health Clinic to remain at
the Evergreen site (Edmonton) without the Council facing
significant cost pressures (see Part 2 report).

The Evergreen clinic was open 25 hours per week, attending to
circa 210 patients per week, which included a clinic for under
19s, with limited accommodation and poor IT support. This
includes patients who required clinical interventions to avoid long
term medical and psychological consequents from sexually
transmitted disease and pregnancies.

The Enfield Highway Library site offers 60% more treatment
rooms and is also consistent with the strategy previously agreed
at Cabinet for delivering improved and effective Sexual Health
Services to local residents.

4.2.3 The Young Person’s Drug and Alcohol Treatment service
is currently delivered from 29 Folkestone Road, London N18
2ER, which is a Council property included on the 2016/17
Capital Disposal Programme to support Enfield’s 2017
efficiency targets.

Folkestone Road does not offer an environment to encourage
young people to attend the service, which is currently being
offered on a peripatetic basis. There are minimal suitable
buildings in the Borough that allows for a D1 service to operate
from and this new location will afford excellent access to young
people due to its anonymity and proximity to the largest college
and other educational establishments in the Borough.



5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 119
Page 319

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Tenderers have submitted responses as part of a thorough,
transparent and fair procurement process.

o All responses have been evaluated against a specification,
written by the Council's Corporate Maintenance &
Construction Team (CMCT), detailing quality requirements
(40%) and price (60%).

e The procurement process was managed by the Corporate
Procurement Hub.

e The Evaluation Panel consisted of representation from:

o Corporate Maintenance & Construction Team (CMCT)
Planning, Highways & Transportation
Regeneration and Environment Department

o North Middlesex University Hospitals NHS Trust
(Contracted Sexual Health Provider)
Design and Commissioning
BEH Clinical Strategy
Estates and Facilities Department

o Drug & Alcohol Services
Health, Housing & Adult Social Care

o Public Health (Sexual Health)
Health, Housing & Adult Social Care

Note: representation for Assisted Services Delivery —
Customer Gateway (Finance, Resources and Customer
Services, being the Library Service) was not available
due to annual leave and capacity.

The Bidders were asked to evidence delivering a comparable
clinical environment to ensure that the premises would pass
CQC inspection.

The timeline for delivery of the building works is eight (8) weeks
for the library and clinic in order to reduce the gap re the
continuation of the library and clinical services in the Eastern
part of the Borough. In particular it is essential that any break in
provision of clinical sexual health services to patients is
minimised.



5.4

6.1

6.2

Page 120
Page 320

The timeline for the Young Person’s Drug and Alcohol Treatment
service will be longer than eight weeks, as the delivery for the lift
is dependent on the stockist.

Bidders have submitted applications, provided evidence to
confirm their experience in delivering the renovation works as
per specification and clarification on the fixed price criteria.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES
AND CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

Financial Implications

6.1.1 Please refer to the accompanying Part 2 Report

Legal Implications

6.2.1 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 permits the Council to
do anything that individuals generally may do provided it is not
prohibited by legislation and subject to Public Law principles.

6.2.2 Furthermore, section 111 of the Local Government Act
1972 gives a local authority power to do anything (whether or
not involving the expenditure, borrowing or lending of money or
the acquisition or disposal of any property or rights) which is
calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the
discharge of any of its functions. The works/services proposed
within this Report are incidental to the functions of the Council’s
departments and will ensure effective support to the Council.

6.2.3 The Council must comply with its Constitution, Contract
Procedure Rules (“CPRs”) and (where contract values exceed
the OJEU Threshold) the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
The Council must also be mindful and adhere to the EU Treaty
Principles regarding equality, fairness and transparency during
procurement processes. The Council has conducted a restricted
procedure and invited 5 bidders to partake in the procurement
process.

6.2.4 As the contract value exceeds £250,000 this is a Key
Decision and the Council must comply with its Key Decision
Procedure.

6.2.5 The Council must comply with its obligations with regards
to obtaining best value under the Local Government (Best Value
Principles) Act 1999.

6.2.6 All legal agreements arising from the matters described in
this Report must be approved in advance of contract



7.2

6.3

Page 121
Page 321

commencement by the Assistant Director of Legal and
Governance Services. Contracts whose value exceeds £250,000
are required to be executed under seal and performance
security should be obtained unless the Relevant Service Director
and the Director of Finance Resources and Customer Services
considers this to be unnecessary (in accordance with CPR 21).

Property Implications

6.3.1 Pursuant to Cabinet Report KD4160, which authorised
the lease arrangements and properties for consideration for the
Reproductive and Sexual Health (RaSH) integrated sexual
health contract, this report sets out the fit out and procurement /
award of contract for the refurbishment of the EHL building.

6.3.2 The lease agreement for the Enfield Highway Building will
be granted for a minimum term of 7 (seven) years.

6.3.3 Property Services are to be sent the floor plans with room
data for the purposes of the Asset Management System, Atrium.

6.3.4 Planning permission has been gained for the new build,
Building Regulations will be adhered to as part of the
infrastructure enabling and construction works. The oversight of
this will fall under the Council’s Contract Administrators (CA's).

6.3.5 Once the development is completed, Building Control will
need to sign off on the completed development. All warranties
and guarantees will be available in the event that building failure
occurs. These guarantees will be assigned after practical
completion occurs and held on behalf of the Council by Legal
Services.

6.3.6 There should be a requirement upon the contractor at
certain set dates for snagging inspections. These inspections will
be organised by the Council's CA’s.

KEY RISKS

The management of quality and performance during the renovation
works process, ensuring that the clinic is CQC compliant.

» This has been managed by requesting evidence of the
Bidders’ portfolio to ensure that the work will be to NHS
standards 7

The work needs to be carried out within a tight timeframe

» This has been managed by asking the Bidders for Work
Plans



8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 122
Page 322

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

Fairness for All

The tender process has been conducted in accordance with both the
Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules and EU Procurement Regulations.
Therefore the tender process has adhered to the principles of
transparency and fairness to encourage healthy competition within this
specialist sector and bidders have accordingly been appropriately
supported throughout the process.

Growth and Sustainability

The redesign of the library will open the service to more users whilst
improving health opportunities in more appropriate and cost effective
community settings. .

As a result of the refurbishment, the service provider for Integrated
Sexual Health services — North Middlesex University Hospital Trust —
will carry out a big advertising campaign for the service announcing
both Enfield Highway Library and the Town Clinic in Burleigh Way and
the extended hours. This campaign will inform the residents and
encourage usage, thereby reducing activity and the high costs we are
currently paying to out-of-borough providers.

Strong Communities

Both the library service and Enfield’s Integrated Sexual Health
Community service will be community services working with the
voluntary sector and other community services.

The Young Person’s Drug and Alcohol Treatment service sharing
location with the library and sexual health services will address one of
the Borough's identified hard to reach population for testing for STls.
Substance misusers are recognised to carry out risky behaviours one
of which is unprotected sexual practices. This location will provide a
safe, confidential and convenient environment for young people to
receive a holistic service addressing their emotional and physical
needs.

The clinic sharing location with the library service will assist in
removing the stigma of attending a sexual health clinic but will also
enable the Library Services to continue to be provided as the Sexual
Health Services provider will be responsible for opening and closing
the building etc.



10.

101

10.2

1.

12.

13.

Page 123
Page 323

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

Equalities Impact Assessment has undertaken by both services

The findings and recommendations are still current to this process.

The renovations work will improve the equality of access to services in
the local area for all Enfield Residents.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

Project and contract monitoring will be carried out by the Principal
Building Surveyor/Project Manager from CMCT.

Weekly updates will be reported to the stakeholders

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
The Contractor is responsible for executing H&S guidelines

HR IMPLICATIONS _
The Contractor is responsible for executing HR guidelines

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

The Library will provide a co-ordinating centre for accessing
information, advice and services. It will be better used within the
community and meet the demands of a new generation of library users
in the right location in a fit for purpose building

The Sexual Health Strategy addresses the need to reduce teenage
pregnancy and late detection of STls and HIV in Enfield.

Since the transfer from NHS to LAs, the activity for GUM in Enfield has
been growing year on year, mainly through patients attending
expensive out-of-borough providers which have seen activity
increasing by up to 18% year on year.

The new model, which commenced 01 November 2015, extends hours
and increases locations, thereby increasing access to address the
needs of the residents with the expected outcome of increasing in-
borough and reducing out-of-borough activity.

The Drug and Alcohol Strategy (HM Government 2010) focusses on
reducing demand, restricting supply and building recovery to support
people in living drug free lives. There is a strong steer towards
increasing support for young people, especially those that are
vulnerable through early interventions, education, treatment and family
focussed support packages.



14.

Page 124
Page 324

The National Alcohol Strategy (HM Government 2012) sets out one of
its key aims as ‘A sustained reduction in both the numbers of 11-15
year olds drinking alcohol and the amounts consumed.’

Working Together to Safeguard Children (HM Government 2015)
emphasises the impact parental substance misuse and young people’s
substance misuse has on the outcomes experienced by families. This
is also reflected in Every Child Matters where the Government made a
clear commitment to ‘reduce frequent use of any illicit drug amongst all
young people under the age of 25'.

The delivery of drug and alcohol services supports Enfield Council in
achieving the above. It contributes to the Council’s Business Plan
(2016/14) across all three priorities, in particular thorough early,
targeted support for children, adults and families who need it and
helping residents make healthier choices and having access to quality
local healthcare. This is also reflected in Enfield’s Children’s Plan
(2016 -2019) with regards to helping families to deal with challenges,
embrace opportunities and stay together whenever possible and
Enfield’s Health and Well-Being Strategy (2014-19) through prevention
and early intervention, addressing health inequalities and ensuring
good quality services.

Background Papers

None.



Page 125

APPENDIX 2

Call-in request form submitted by 8 Members of
the Council



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 127

DST —- Ref No:

CALL-IN OF DECISION

(please ensure you complete all sections fully)

Please return the completed original signed copy to:
Claire Johnson, Scrutiny Team, 1% Floor, Civic Centre

TITLE OF DECISION: Reforbisment and geediSION WO (W Of ’
enfe\d ‘\—\Qﬁ\fkwé‘&ﬂ Lfb(&/ﬁ bot\dlwvyg  LDU33S
DECISION OF:  CaRWNET |

DATE OF DECISION LIST PUBLICATION: fgiday 2\ OCToBeR 2016
ustro: 13 (12 [y fie-17)

(* N.B. Remember you must call-in a decision and notify Scrutiny Team within §
working days of its publication).

A decision can be called in if it is a corporate or portfolio decision made by either
Cabinet or one of its sub-committees, or a key decision made by an officer with
delegated authority from the Executive.

(a) COUNCILLORS CALLING-IN (The Council’'s constitution requires seven
signatures or more from Councillors to call a decision in).

(1) Signature:/ =" PrintName:Z/ﬁ((;g@//pé/ Wku

(2) Signature:..*.[...%..\;—tt.-.—.sm.. Print Name— VA .. =TEER

Print Name:. /Wy o

Print Name:...! V.\ ...+ o R O ot R,

Print Name:..}xf&?‘vﬂ..ﬁ.&m{m
Print Name:...(.;.l. vt N e

(b) SCRUTINY PANEL RESOLUTION (copy of minute detailing formal
resolution to request call-in to be attached).

NAME OF PANEL: OOUUIUN g\ &MJ“ /Lj Che

DATE OF PANEL:

DST/PPB/May02



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129

APPENDIX 3

Reasons for Call-in by Councillor calling in the
decision

&

Briefing Note in response to called in decision
TO FOLLOW



This page is intentionally left blank



List R s> (2] / /6~ :D.

1) Reason why decision is being called in:

Sea Nocelad -

2) Outline of proposed alternative action:

S Atleches)

3) Do you believe the decision is outside the policy framework?

&u, aéldok(v(/\w(

(3) If Yes, give reasons: n/a

For DST USE ONLY:
Checked by Monitoring Officer for validation —

Name of Monitoring Officer: Date:

3/ 10 |20(4

ﬁgw H%SSM




Page 132

(1) Reason why decision is being called in:

a) Contract Procedure Rules of the Council stipulate that for contracts over
£500,000 at least five quotations must be obtained. Also at least two of these
quotations must be from local firms. The report did not clarify whether two of the
bidders were local firms or not. If there were no local bidders the report should have
given reasons why this was the case to conform with the Contract Procedure Rules
of the council.

On this occasion five contractors were invited to submit tenders. However two
pulled out and one was declined due to incorrect submission. That left just two
bidders, one bidder scored significantly higher on price and lower on quality and the
other, higher on quality but lower on price.

Also it has been highlighted that there were potential anomalies with regards to
conversations taking place on London Tenders Portal between Corporate
Maintenance and Construction Team and one of the bidders.

In light of the above, it is highly likely that Enfield council tax payers will take the
view that the tendering process did not achieve value for money, as competitive
tendering is supposed to do.

b) Enfield Council has a statutory duty to provide comprehensive and efficient
library services for all persons desiring to make use of Enfield’s Libraries. This
proposal reduces the floor space available for the library service by 75%. The report
did not demonstrate that with this level of reduction the council will continue to
provide a comprehensive library service from these premises.

c) The proposed inclusion of a Sexual Health Clinic alongside a Children’s Library
does not take into account any sensitivity toward the users of both services.

DST/PPB/May02




Page 133

! 1
(2\) Outline of proposed alternative action » '
The decision to be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration with a request that: '

e due to an insufficient response from invited bidders and the potentigl far_u_)mahes
highlighted during the tendering process, a new tendering progess is mltlate:d; and

e the new configuration proposed for the library be backed up with more detallec_t
information in order to demonstrate that the new lay out is not going to pe detrimental to
the library and a comprehensive library service will be provided for residents from these
premises.

(3) Do you believe the decision is outside the policy framework?
No

(4) If yes give reasons: N/A

FOR DST USE ONLY:
Checked by Proper Officer for validation —

Name of Proper Officer: Date:

DST/PPB/May02



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 135 Agenda Item 6

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORT NO. 145

— . ltem: 6

MEETING TITLE AND DATE: Agenda - Part: 1
Overview & Scrutiny Subject: Quarterly Corporate Performance
Committee, Report
10 November 2016 Wards: Al
REPORT OF: Key Decision No: 4330
Director of Finance, Resources
and Customer Services

Cabinet Member consulted: N/A
Contact officers and telephone

numbers:

Asmat Hussain, Assistant Director Legal and Governance
Tel: 020 8379 6438

Email: asmat.hussain@enfield.gov.uk

Claire Johnson, Scrutiny and Member Services Manager
Tel: 020 8379 4239

E mail: claire.johnson@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1  This report details a call-in submitted in relation to the following decision:
Cabinet Decision (19 October 2016): Quarterly Corporate Performance
Report

1.2  Details of this decision were included on Publication of Decision List No.
34/16-17 (Ref. 3/34/16-17 — issued on 21 October 2016).

1.3 In accordance with the Council’'s Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is asked to consider the decision that has been called-in for
review.

1.4  The members who have called-in this decision do not believe it falls outside of
the Council’s Policy Framework.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  That Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the called-in decision and




Page 136

either:

(@)

(b)
(©)

Refers the decision back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration setting out in writing the nature of its concerns. The
decision making body then has 14 working days in which to reconsider
the decision; or

Refer the matter to full Council; or
Confirm the original decision.

Once the Committee has considered the called-in decision and makes one of
the recommendations listed at (a), (b) or (c) above, the call-in process is
completed. A decision cannot be called in more than once.

If a decision is referred back to the decision making person or body; the
implementation of that decision shall be suspended until such time as the
decision making person or body reconsiders and either amends or confirms
the decision, but the outcome on the decision should be reached within 14
working days of the reference back. The Committee will subsequently be
informed of the outcome of any such decision.

3.1

BACKGROUND/ INTRODUCTION

Please refer to Section 3 of the Cabinet decision report.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None — Under the terms of the call-in procedure within the Council’s
Constitution, Overview & Scrutiny Committee is required to consider
any eligible decision called-in for review. The alternative options
available to Overview & Scrutiny Committee under the Council's
Constitution, when considering any call-in, have been detailed in
section 2 above.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
To comply with the call-in procedure within the Council’'s Constitution.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1 Financial Implications

The financial implications relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision report.



10.

11.

Page 137

6.2 Legal Implications

S 21, S 21A-21C Local Government Act 2000, s.19 Police and Justice
Act 2006 and regulations made under s.21E Local Government Act
2000 define the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny
committee. The functions of the committee include the ability to
consider, under the call-in process, decisions of Cabinet, Cabinet
Sub-Committees, individual Cabinet Members or of officers under
delegated authority.

Part 4, Section 18 of the Council’'s Constitution sets out the procedure
for call-in. Overview and Scrutiny Committee, having considered the
decision may: refer it back to the decision making person or body for
reconsideration; refer to full Council or confirm the original decision.

The Constitution also sets out at section 18.2, decisions that are
exceptions to the call-in process.

6.3 Property Implications

There are no corporate property implications arising from the Cabinet
decision Report.

KEY RISKS

The key risks identified relating to the called-in decision have been
detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

The way in which the called-in decision impacts on the Council
priorities relating to fairness for all, growth and sustainability and strong
communities have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

The equalities impact implications relating to the called-in decision
have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

The performance management implications identified relating to the
called-in decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The health and safety implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.



Page 138

12. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

The public health implications identified relating to the called-in
decision have been detailed in the Cabinet decision Report.

Background Papers
None



Page 139

APPENDIX 1

Call-In: Cabinet Decision: Quarterly
Performance Report



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

Page 93 Agenda Item 8

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017 REPORTNO. Q7

Agenda - Part: 1 item: 8

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

Cabinet — 19" October 2016 Subject: Quarterly Corporate Performance
Report
REPORT OF: Wards: All

Chief Executive Key Decision No: 4330

Cabinet Member consulted:

Contact officer and telephone number: Clir A. Georgiou

Alison Trew 020 8379 3186

E mail: alison.trew@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1Cabinet has been receiving regular monitoring reports on the Corporate
Performance Scorecard since September 2012.

1.21n the current difficult financial circumstances, there is value in demonstrating
that, in many areas, Council performance in delivering key priorities is being
maintained and/or improved. It is also important that the Council understands
and effectively addresses underperformance.

1.3 This is the latest quarterly report on the Corporate Performance Scorecard that
reflects Council priorities and local resources, demand etc. The report attached
at Appendix 1 shows the latest available performance at the end of June 2016
and compares it to the Council’s performance at the 2015/16 year end.

2, RECOMMENDATIONS

21 That Cabinet notes progress made towards delivering the identified key
priority indicators for Enfield.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 In the continuing challenging local government financial environment, it is
important that the Council continues to monitor its performance to ensure that
the level and quality of service and value for money is maintained and where
possible improved. It is also essential to understand and take appropriate
action in areas where performance is deteriorating. This may include



3.2

3.3

3.4

42

4.3

Page 142
Page 94

delivering alternative interventions to address underperformance, or making a
case to central government and other public bodies if the situation is beyond
the control of the Council.

Following the abolition of the National Indicator Set in 2010, the Corporate
Performance Scorecard was developed containing performance measures
that demonstrate progress towards achieving the Council’'s aims and key
priorities. The measures are grouped under the Council’s three strategic aims,
Freedom for All, Growth and Sustainability and Strong Communities. A
number of financial health measures are also included. The scorecard is
reviewed annually and targets are set based on local demand and available
resources.

Performance is reported to the Corporate Management Board and Cabinet
quarterly. Following the Cabinet meeting the performance tables are
published on the Council’s website.

The report attached at Appendix 1 shows the latest available performance at
the end of June 2016 and compares it to the Council’'s performance at the
2015/16 year end.

PERFORMANCE

Appendix 1 shows the latest available performance at the end of June 2016
and compares it to the Council’s performance at the 2015/16 year end. Where
appropriate, explanatory comments are provided in the column next to the
performance information.

Financial Indicators

This section provides an overview of the Council’s financial health. The first
three indicators give the income and expenditure position, the next two provide
an update on the Council’s balance sheet and the final two indicators show the
cash flow position.

Priority Indicators

The Priority Indicators scorecard groups performance indicators under the
Council's three strategic aims, Fairness for All, Growth and Sustainability and
Strong Communities.

Where a target has been set, performance is rated at green if it is on or
exceeding the target; amber where the target has been narrowly missed; and
red where performance was significantly below the target set for the year.

3 of the indicators being reported do not have targets. Reasons for this include
new indicators for which targets have yet to be established and indicators that
have no national targets set (e.g. Domestic Violence). Performance data for Q1
is not yet available for 6 waste and recycling indicators.

66 performance indicators are being reported, of which 57 have targets. Of
these, 33 (57.9%) are at green; 13 (22.8%) are at amber; and 11 (19.3%) are at
red.



Page 143
Page 95

The notes cover a number of areas and may inciude explanation of how the
indicators are calculated, commentary on progress towards achieving the
targets, trends over time and national comparisons.

As part of the Enfield 2017 programme, a number of key areas in the Council
have been restructured. Staffing changes and the introduction of new IT
systems have resulted in a temporary drop in performance in some services.
Action is being taken to bring performance back on target.

For a few indicators, questions have been raised as to whether the processes
for collecting and reporting data are capturing all the activity covered by the
indicators. The Data and Management Information Reporting Hub and
Performance Analysis Team are working closely with departments to review
and, where necessary, amend procedures.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not to report regularly on the Council's performance. This would make it
difficult to assess progress made on achieving the Council’s main priorities and
to demonstrate the value for money being provided by Council services.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
To update Cabinet on the progress made against all key priority performance
indicators for the Council.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

7.1Financial Implications

The cost of producing the quarterly reports will be met from existing
resources.

7.2 Legal Implications

There is no statutory duty to report regularly to Cabinet on the Council's
performance, however under the Local Government Act 1999 a best value
authority has a statutory duty to secure continuous improvement in the way in
which its functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness. Regular reports on the Council’s performance
assist in demonstrating best value.

7.3 Property Implications

None.



10.

1.

12.

Page 144
Page 96

KEY RISKS

Robust performance management helps identify areas of risk in service
delivery and ensure that Council resources are used effectively and that the
Council’'s good reputation is maintained.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

a. Fairness for All
The scorecard includes indicators that measure the Council's progress in
reducing inequalities across the Borough.

b. Growth and Sustainability

The scorecard includes indicators that aim to support business growth,
increase numbers of people in employment, protect and sustain Enfield’s
environment and support Enfield's voluntary and community sector.

c. Strong Communities

The scorecard includes indicators that assess how the Council’s actions are
contributing to strengthening communities, improving communications,
reducing crime and improving health.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

Corporate advice has been sought in regard to equalities and an agreement
has been reached that an equalities impact assessment/analysis is not
relevant or proportionate for the corporate performance report.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
Robust performance management provides the Council with accurate data
and ensures that service delivery is meeting local needs and priorities.

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
The scorecard includes a number of health and wellbeing indicators that aim
to address the key health inequalities in Enfield.

Background Papers

None



Page 145
Page 97

D RS TES TR WIS LS

9T.InC
- buney ysry

flounon

=126png yym 3964e3 Lo aue Je3A BY3 104 3513104 53d19031 3S3IaIU]

*anp jjes A94} USYM SIUSWIYILLILIOD SNUSAIL pue |eded pauue|d 19A0D 0] J|gejieAR SJe Spuny JUBDIYNS
21nsua |IM (Buimollog BuIpn|pUl) 1834 B3 104 3SED10) MOJJYSED PUB SSDUR[Eq YSED S,|12UN0D Y|

515E29404 51d1909Yy 1S949IUI - MO[4 YyseD

*/T1/9T0C ul spuadsiano
440-2U0 3] 199W 03 SSAIDSI] PIRIWUIOIUN JO SN SY3 UO paseq S|aAd| Jobiey Abajells [epueuly
WwiIS] WNIPa S,]1DUNoD) Y3 333W |[IM S9DUB[Rq pund [eJaud ayj Joj uoidafoldd uinino pus-ieah ayL

1523104 MOpYSeD pue saduejeq ysed - Moj4 YseD

*UJNJ2J JO 3.4 JDAO Spuny o AuIndas buisiuoud 1o) ABajens
panoidde s,|19un0) Sy} YIM ddueplodde Ul 99 03 SANUIRUOD SIUDSWISIAUI YSed Jo 3jijold Jua.1nd ay)

suodafoid
pUD JedA saoue|eq pun4 |BJBUDY) - 199YS Souejeg

126png 3suiebe uin}INo pua-1eaA Joy uonyisod puads [2A9] e buildafold S| WYH 2YL

JUDWISIAUT YseD - 199yS aduejeq

*1edA ay) ssotoe puads pajedidijue Uo paseq
s326pnqg [enpiaipul 3j1y0id mou sJapjoy 326png ‘1eaA ay3 Inoybnoayy suianed buipuads Jou payipaud
199|494 J1o12q 03 JapJo ul pajjdde g 03 anuiRuod JIIMm S39bpNq jeuswiledap (e ssolde buljiyold 19bpng

ViH - UonIsod ainypuadxy g awoduf

*ua)je] aq ued uoe errdoidde Ajpwi] 21nsud 03 A|9sopd
pabeuew 9q 01 paau ||IM 2)ep 03 paljiluapl sedueea 396png “ainjipusdxa 9|qe|joJ3uod 13U puny
|e42Ua9) 0} UOIIR[aJ Ul )P 03 PaIIUSPI USQ SARY PUSdSISA0 WE"/F JO SSDUBIIBA 1S@I10) PUS-IRSA

buijoid 196png - uoisod a4NPpuadx3y g SWOdUT

SIYBIYBIH A

saoueleA
1582210} PUD JE3A - UOIYSOd 2Injipuadxg g awodu]

ai13idN3

M3IADY JO BaIY

9107 Joquwaldeas 9T :uo pojelauan

(309304d) £T/9T0T S4031ed]puU] |eldueUl] - MIIADY 9D




Page 146
Page 98

2 (59X3Uuy pasesT

Aj31eALd '§ PISEIT 40I1D3S 2IBALI)SPIOA "Je2A 15B| poliad sLues uo
P | WoJy uodnNpal - | Z [ :STVH "teeA 1se| poltad sawes uo (dysz)
ZEE 40 3sea.dUl - 9p/ | (UonEpowW W OodDY Adusbiaw] el ise|
poiad awes uo /€| WoJy uopaNpal - 07 L:senJadosd pases]

'SISBq SUd ®
uo BuIB| 10 19djJew Y] Syl Woly BuIMeIpYIIM J3Y1IS pue 1a)Jew
ay31 U] uonneduwiod paseasoul 1surebe dn Bulwiod ase suoneIdOsSE

Buisnoy - (STYH) way>s buises uoliepossy BuisnoH (€

sso1d Bulreedss 01 anp uonepowWoddy Ausbiswy

0] S}lUn PaseI] JO UOISIIAUOI PUE S1|Un pasea| Jo SSOo| 3yl y1og (7
uonepowwodde Ausbiaws Bullinbal puewsp salssely (|

:013np

S| uollepowwodde Aledodwsal Ul BUIA]| SP|oYSsnoY Ul 9sealoul 3y |

SJewWYdURq B se pasn Buiaq s{elol s Jesh 1se| ‘usyl
|nun ‘Ajloys pappe 3q o1 Jeah siy1 Joj s|4oad 195481 Alyluopy

158¢

Alyauop X X X

painseap

200¢€

uojjepowLuoIIE
Aesodwal ul Buiall spjoyasnoy jo JaquinN

210N 1593¥7]

1964e)
uaun)

£1/9102
1]

403e31pul,

cc &
e1 ©
T X

$10JedIpU| JO JSQUINN - (9102 PUN( 40 Pusd) £1/910Z | Jauend

w &
1 ¥
or X
S101BIpU] JO J3GWINN ~ (91 Y2IBIN JO PUd) 91/5102

A0
pujurem

way

X710

snjels o) Ad)]



Page 147
Page 99

*Ajyiuopy pariodsy *g [ 0Z Al uo umop Apybi|s st ysiym
%6 17201 Jo @duewilopad AlyIuo "sabIeYd Ul S0'ZSP'889'S LF 40
|e30] ® 1sujefe p31da}jod SBM WodUl JO 0580/ '660'91F J0 [B101 Y

%02°001L

Alyauow
paJinsesp

@

@

@

%79°¢0L

%YEVOL

%y LOL

%91°001

(sdeasie Jual Buipnpxa) ahp
1uaJ jo uotliodoud e se S3WOH [1DuUno?) Aq pa12s|jod 1udy

sue|d uojoe sy) Jo 1ed se

passaJppe a4 pue sBuaaL 101oeiu0d ul Apenbal pasies bulsq
31E 953y} puU® SI01DBIUO0D SIBdal 3Y) YIIMm Ulewdd s3Nss| ‘|]dm
Bulwiopad Mou BIe S101DBIIUO0D J PUE [ Y10g "JedA 3Ly uiyam
3duewWIOMAd 196481 BUIYIER. JO W 9yl Yiim Ajiuow paloljuowl
3q [|m 353y "pa1e|dwod Bulaq aJ4e sanss| ay) ssalppe o1 suejd
UoI10B puE SPANEIUASIda] JOIDRIUOD J0UIS Y] pue BuisnoH Qv
3Y3 Yim play a49m sBUNS|W 1DB11UGD JJO SUO Uonippe U] 9107
ABlA W01} SIDBIIUOD BYI UIYIIM salljeusd |eldueUly 343 JuswW|duw|
0] 3pEW Sem UOIS|D3IP 3Y) UoIESI|IgoLy Jo JBaA © Buimo|jod

"1964e1 MO|2q ||13S S13INq 9102

Aejy 9duls Apybis pasessoul sey siyj *ps19|dwod sitedal 602°'¢

10 [2101 B WoJ} sw(l U} pa19|dwod a4am siredal saIsuodsas geg's
Jo |e101 ¥ *(3uUnf o pus syl Aq ps13|dwod pue) [1idy Ul pasiel a1am
12y} sJiedal 101DBIIUOD LLISY |[B JO DAISNDUI 3JR SUIN1INO B1R(

%0096

Alyauow
painsesin

%6€°56

%L1L°S6

%EV'LO

%C5°68

(QLA) - 21=p 1964e) pasibe Aq pals|dwod siiedad
aaIsuodsal Jo sswoy [puno) Ag bulioliuow 101dB1U0D)

-1961e1
spJemol AjMo|s 9A04dLd) 01 SBNUIIUOD UBIIDRISITES “JBdA 3yl UiylIm
aouewIouad 196481 Bulydeal Jo Wie sy YiIm Ajyiuow paioluow

2q ||Im 953y "pa1a|dulod Buisq aJe sonss| 9yl ssaippe 01 sue|d
uo|1dB pue SaAleIUBsPIdal JOIDBIIUOD JOIUIS Yl pue BuishoH Qv
3Y1 Yim pay sem sBUIIEdLI 10RIIUGD JJO SUO UoNIpPe U] '910Z
Ay WoOLy S10BIIUOD Y] UlYIM sanfeuad [eIDURULY 3] JUsWR|du
01 9pBW SEM co_.m_uw_u 3yl uoliesy|iqow jo JesA e buimo||o]

‘auo(e aunf

10} %9 |"$6 01 pasesdou) sey sdurwiopiad Ajyjuow JaA3moy ‘alep
01 JedA Se UMOYS S| DIUBLLIOLID "3DIAISS Jledsl dAIsuodsal ay3
Y1Im UOIDB)SIIES JISL1 paledIpul (DUl aunf 01 |11dy poliad) panssi
SI9pJ0 SHI0M J0 123dsal ul pausnial sASAINS 695" | 40 1IN0 O L

%C6

Ajyauop
painseapy

%68

%88

%.8

%16

SSWOH [1PUno)
Ag papinoid a321AI9S sdledad YlIM UDIIDBYSIIBS |[BIBAQ

910N 1s93E]

19b1e)
ua.und)

Z1/9102
Xo)

910z sunf

9102 Ae

9107 |Hdy

9l/5102

Jojealpu) .




Page 148
Page 100

(%2S°E) SE0L :JesA [epuRUY B Bulinp 1u10d Aue 1B S3DIAI3S YljEsy
[EIUSW AJBPUODAS PAAIIIDL DARY OYM SNPE JO J3qLunu [elo]

e Ajupuon X X X X
/€ IMIIABY ° painsesap
|ewiJoy/3UBLUSSISSE JUIIDJ JSOW 1I2Y] JO Wil 3Y) 18 (,paAoldwa,
se papJod3J asoy] *9°1) JuawAo|dwas pred Ul $BIIAIBS YIjEdYy juawAojdwa ui
jelus W AJepuodes paAIsdal SABY OYM SYNPE O J3quinu [e10} %9 € %9 ¢ %V v %S’V S8D|AIRS Yl[ERY |EIusW AlBpuodss BulAiedal S1jhpy JO ON
(%8°92) SEOL — JedA eipueuly @ 6unnp juljod Aue ye -
SIDIAIDS 3[Ry |EJUBW AJBPUDDSS PBAISIAI BARY oYM synpe [e3o) | Alyauop “ : / \,
'§6/ ~ UOIEPOLULUOIIR %0°08 painseap (obe1U3D12d) UOIIEPOWLLOIIE PBjIIRs Ul SIIIAIBS
po319$ U] SIJIAIBS Yi[eay [elusw Arepuodas Bulaiedal s1jnpe [e10) %8°92 %9°S2 %E"9L %264 Y3[eay [elusW Alepuodss BUIAadDI SINPE JO "ON
Alyauompy AI. / LW o
09 N eeS i : juswhodws pred u|
P W 89 i) S 09 S17 BuAtedal sJUIp2 pajqesip Buluses| jnpe L0 JaquinN
PP 1
PpIEOg WOIEIBI U] pUP BUiLoISSIIWOD) 1UI0f
oY) YBNoIoY] @2UPLLLI0JIST SS2IpPE 01 928/d U] 818 SUB[H UO
Y1 Y L4 . ppe o1 82&[d U] /d UondY Ayauon X x X x
sAe|ap juiof q
painsespy
Sem ¢ pue aJe) [B1D0S 01 3|qeINGLIIE 3lam ¢ pue sAejag YijesH
JIM 22 YI1YM Jo ‘g0z Bunf Buunp sAejap 1usned gz asam a4y ¢.°6 6 6 9’8 dod 00‘00 | 42d (syusned) si4ed jo susjsuedl pade|sq
won | | @ | @ | @ || @
%00°LS ainsesp 1usWAeq
P %CEE9 %S €9 %ES"C9 %EC 29 1D241Q ® BUIAI9IRI S17 YIM SIUS|[D JUS1IND Jo abeuadlag
wn | @ | @ | @ || @
%00°66 aInsespy pPa3108.I(J J|9S dAIPIAL oym (S1T) Woddns wua) Buoq
P %00°001 %00°001 %00°00 L %00°001 Bulssa30® S3UBI|D dJe) [BI20G JUBLIND JO 26BIUDIISY
—
Al4iuop 9 e
"oddng wia) Huo e BujAedaL SJUIP 2665 | %ST0C w_“\_:mmw X (321A195 WIRY Buo| Aue Bulalsdad
40 M3IABI B BUIAI9DBL SIUBIP 71/ SIUBsaIdsl % "0 - 91 aunf1y P W %1°0¢ %L %E"L %6°0L SIUBI[2 40) JBSA BUL Ul PIMIIARI SIUBI|D JO JSGUINN
1bie) L1/9102 _
3JON 1s91¥], uaLnd o 910z aunf | 910Z ABW | 910Z judy 91/s102 doyedipuj




Page 149

APPENDIX 2

Call-in request form submitted by 8 Members of
the Council



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151

CALL-IN OF DECISION

(please ensure you complete all sections fully)

Please return the completed original signed copy to:
James Kinsella, Democratic Services Team, 3 Floor, Civic Centre

TITLE OF DECISION: &) =5 e i

‘-\_:] ST = — (<‘2 )

>

DECISION OF: c——t—_—e=
DATE OF DECISION LIST PUBLICATION: Z.i\ i\ &
LISTNO: KD 4+ 2320 B/ RU/IG-1T1) .
(* N.B. Remember you must call-in a decision and notify Democratic Services Team
within 5 working days of its publication).

A decision can be called in if it is a corporate or portfolio decision made by either
Cabinét or one of its sub-committees, or a key decision made by an officer with
delegated authority from the Executive.

(a) COUNCILLORS CALLING-IN (The Council’s constitution requires seven
signatures or more from Councillors to call a decision in).

(1) Signature: T3\ Print Name: .=, \ .62 Erano... ..

(2) Signature: YfM/?//ngﬂ W Print Name:. ﬁM LA RCE,. ...

(3) Signature:t'_ ................ Asrsm '(_,\ Print Name:. -6/ en&M@du (

(4) Signatu@. Q"\’L“* s Print Name: QNM‘ % \/’ NC&- i

(5) Signature:.../.\.’.‘....__é AV W Print Name:....m.'.‘..‘/;..q. o
Vi )/f 77 o l-,..__ 7 = N <

(6) Signature: /. /. LT o — Print Name:. /\} .. 0 INVES
s

(7) Signature:},//—,g /g"""}’ ..... : Print Name:.. pf S.GEREAR..... ..

.‘___..,-o—"
(8) Signature:. 3NN Print Name: "2 SASSEN s

(b) SCRUTINY PANEL RESOLUTION (copy of minute detailing formal
resolution to request call-in to be attached).

NAME OF PANEL:GOYU e & &/\/\J’\/:Ij Cloee

DATE OF PANEL:

MNOTINNNA £...0°



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153

APPENDIX 3

Reasons for Call-in by Councillor calling in the
decision

&

Briefing Note in response to called in decision
TO FOLLOW



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 155

DST - Ref No:

a. SCRUTINY PANEL RESOLUTION (copy of minute detailing formal
resolution to request call-in to be attached).

(1) Reason why decision is being called in:

The statistics and information shown in this report warrant further scrutiny by the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee. The reasons why are as follows:

1.0 Income and expenditure position — year end forecast variances. The risk
rating is red because the yearend forecasts variances of £7.9million overspend have
been identified to date in relation to General Fund net controllable expenditure. This
is of great concern to the Council and needs further exploration and plus extra
information is needed in terms of an action plan to reduce it.

2.0 Recovery of council properties fraudulently obtained sublet or
abandonment. This is marked with a red cross and is below target.

3.0 Processing new claims — Housing Benefit/Council tax Support. This is also
marked with a red cross indicating that it is below target. This is a failure to turn
applications round which are effecting residents.

4.0 Complaints answered in 10 days. This is marked with a red cross. The target is
92%, we only achieved 68.97%. This is well below target and unacceptable.

5.0 All departments — FOIs answered within 20 days. This is also marked with a
red cross as for Q1 only answered 74.69% of FOIs within 20 days which is the
code’s statutory time frame. The current target is 95%

6.0 All departments — MEQs answered within 8 days. This is also marked with a
red cross for Q1 as only 82.5% were answered within the service level agreement
out of a target of 95%.,

7.0 Delayed transfers of care patients. This is marked with a red cross. There were
28 patient delays the current target is 5 and in reality we don’t want any.

8.0  Average Sick Days. This is also marked as red and below target. The average
number of days off sick is 9.4 per full time employee.

1. Outline of proposed alternative action '
The decision to be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration with a request that a further

review of performance against each of the areas highlighted is undertaken.

(3) Do you believe the decision is outside the policy framework?

No (4) If Yes, give reasons:

FOR S. & O. USE ONLY:
Checked by Proper Officer for validation —

Name of Prop Date:

DST/PPB/May02 @ W# /_% ts .

21/(0 20/ 6




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157 Agenda Item 7

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 11.10.2016

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 11 OCTOBER 2016

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Derek Levy, Abdul Abdullahi, Joanne Laban, Edward Smith
and Nneka Keazor

ABSENT Katherine Chibah

STATUTORY 1 vacancy (Church of England diocese representative), Mr

CO-OPTEES: Simon Goulden (other faiths/denominations representative),

Mr Tony Murphy (Catholic diocese representative), Alicia
Meniru & 1 vacancy (Parent Governor representative) - Italics
Denotes absence

OFFICERS: Andrea Clemons (Head of Community Safety) and Ray James
(Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care) Andy Ellis
(Scrutiny Officer) and Jane Creer (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Councillor Krystle Fonyonga (Cabinet Member for Community
Safety and Public Health)

174

WELCOME & APOLOGIES

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies for absence were
received from Councillor Chibah and apologies for lateness from Councillor
Keazor.

175
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

NOTED there were no declarations of interest.

176
THE CABINET MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY SAFETY AND PUBLIC
HEALTH

NOTED
1. Introduction by the Chair.

a. Cabinet Members were invited by Overview & Scrutiny Committee
to present areas of their remit for information and to gather opinion, and

- 157 -



Page 158
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 11.10.2016

this evening Councillor Fonyonga was attending as Cabinet Member
for Community Safety and Public Health.

b. Two papers were received: on Community Safety (sent to follow)
and on Public Health (tabled).

c. It was noted that Councillor Fonyonga had previously chaired the
Crime Scrutiny Standing Workstream, before becoming a Cabinet
Member.

d. The remit of the Cabinet Member for Community Safety and Public
Health overlapped three Council directorates.

. Councillor Fonyonga’s introduction, including:

a. The role had given her a new appreciation of the hard work of
officers.

b. One immediate action had been the recent promotion of organ
donation. Other ideas included healthier choices in the staff canteen.
c. She acknowledged recent changes within Public Health personnel,
but all staff were genuinely motivated to improve the health of the
public.

d. In Sport and Leisure, there was a focus on people who were
inactive and getting people moving more.

. Councillor Fonyonga responded to general questions, including:

a. Confirmation that this Cabinet portfolio had been realigned. It also
involved engagement with external agencies, particularly the NHS and
the Police Service.

b. In response to questions about the Fire Service, she confirmed she
had met the new Fire Brigade Borough Commander and aimed to build
a good working relationship.

c. Inresponse to queries regarding knowledge gained via previous
scrutiny workstream work, she confirmed that ability to scrutinise
papers had been critical, and that she was able to challenge draft
reports.

d. In response to queries about Public Heath, she considered that
having a new Director of Public Health at LB Enfield two days per week
would give the Council valuable input and guidance into the North
Central London Sustainability and Transformation Plan. Ray James
also clarified the emerging plan and advised that a range of options
would be explored going forward, including potential for shared
services and consolidation.

. Community Safety

a. The report submitted to the committee provided an overview of
performance and highlighted the three key areas for further note: (1)
Domestic abuse and violence against women and girls; (2) Tackling
gangs and serious youth violence; and (3) Extra policing resources.
b. Performance was shown against the MOPAC seven crime
categories. Burglary, robbery, theft from motor vehicle and theft of
motor vehicle had all fallen by more than 20% in Enfield. A big
challenge for reduction was violence with injury. Higher reporting

- 158 -



Page 159
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 11.10.2016

figures for domestic violence largely reflected greater awareness. That
gang and youth violence was increasing slower in Enfield than
nationally was a reflection of work in the borough.
c. Current and new targeted initiatives would be used to keep
improving performance. Violence against women and girls would be a
priority for reduction, with better intervention at an earlier stage.
d. Andrea Clemons (Head of Community Safety) highlighted a recent
campaign in relation to domestic abuse, with victims being encouraged
to come forward, and funding for GP training.
e. Councillor Laban confirmed that the data was also presented to the
Crime Scrutiny Standing Workstream, who were also looking into
domestic abuse this year.
f. In response to Councillor Smith’s queries regarding female genital
mutilation and its prosecution, Andrea Clemons would investigate the
figures and report back.

ACTION: Andrea Clemons
g. Inresponse to Councillor Laban’s queries, the contracts for
additional police community support officers were clarified.
h. In response to Councillor Keazor’'s queries, details were provided
about the Council’s support and protection for victims of domestic
abuse and gangs.

. Public Health

a. The report submitted to the committee provided an overview of
current work and highlighted issues for further note. Ray James
(Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care) would also provide
an electronic version of the report to Members.

ACTION: Ray James
b. There were concerns regarding general health of the public in the
borough. Enfield had the seventh highest rate of diabetes in London,
high numbers with hypertension, and high obesity rates in adults and
children. Latest measures relating to Year 6 children would be available
in December.
c. In recent years there had been focus on heart disease and
improvements had been seen.
d. Members raised the promotion of healthy eating in schools, and
discussed the issues around overweight children and adults. Councillor
Fonyonga also emphasised the importance of physical activity and the
Move More Enfield campaign, and smoking cessation.
e. Healthy lifestyle promotion was one facet of Public Health, but most
money was spent on commissioned services, some of which were
mandatory such as sexual health services and drug treatment services.
The Council also commissioned health visitors and school nurses.
Developments at Town Clinic and Enfield Highway Library were
highlighted, which would improve the local sexual health service offer.
f. In response to Members’ queries, it was advised that a lot of work,
particularly around diabetes, was GP practice based and the better
performers tended to be larger practices with support and challenge
coming from groups of professionals working together.

- 159 -



Page 160
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 11.10.2016

g. In response to Councillor Laban’s queries, Councillor Fonyonga
would check recent statistics relating to swimming pool attendances by
children.

h. Councillor Fonyonga welcomed the appointment of the new Director
of Public Health who would drive the department forward and make it
more effective.

6. The Chair asked for Members’ suggestions for additions to the work
programme. Potential issues included: suicide audit; local mental
health trust; detection and management of hypertension; examination
of the North Central London Sustainability and Transformation Plan;
and London Fire Brigade.

7. The Chair thanked Councillor Fonyonga for attending and for being
open and honest with the committee.

177
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 SEPTEMBER 2016

AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2016 as a correct
record.

178
WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17

NOTED the work programme for 2016/17.

179
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED the dates of future meetings and provisional call-in dates.

- 160 -



	Agenda
	3 CALL IN OF REPORT: GREEN BIN SERVICE CHANGE  ( 7:35 pm to 8:05pm)
	Appendix 1 - Green Bin Service Change
	Part 1 Report Green Bin Service Change
	Appendix 2 - Green Bin Service Change
	Councillors Signature Sheet Call-In
	Appendix 3 - Green Bin Service Change
	Call-In Green bins reasons for call in
	Response to Call In - The Green Bin service Change v2.0 (3)

	4 CALL IN OF REPORT: THE DEVELOPMENT OF EDMONTON CEMETERY ( 8:05pm to 8:35pm)
	Appendix 1 - The Development of Edmonton Cemetery
	Part 1 Report The Development of Edmonton Cemetery
	Appendix 2 - The Development of Edmonton Cemetery
	Councillors Signature Sheet
	Appendix 3 - reasons for call in
	Call-In Edmon Cemetery reasons
	-Response to Call In - The Development of Edmonton Cemetery (3)

	5 CALL IN OF REPORT: REFURBISHMENT & REPROVISION WORK OF ENFIELD HIGHWAY LIBRARY BUILDING ( 8:35pm to 9:05pm)
	Appendix 1 - Refurbishment & Reprovision Work of Enfield Highway Library Building
	Part 1 Report Refurbishment & Provision Work of Enfield Highway Library Building
	Appendix 2 - Refurbishment & Reprovision Work of Enfield Highway Library Building
	Councillors Signature Sheet  Call-In
	Appendix 3 - reasons for call in
	Call-In Enf Hway library

	6 CALL IN OF REPORT: QUARTERLY CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT ( WITHDRAWN)
	Appendix 1 - Quarterly Performance Report
	Part 1 Report Quarterly Performance Report
	Appendix 2 - Quarterly Performance Report
	Councillor Signature Sheet Call-In
	Appendix 3 - reasons for call in
	Call-In Quarterly Perf Reasons

	7 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 OCTOBER 2016.

